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UNITED STATES
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x  QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2018

or

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-36817
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(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 20-8873453
(State or other jurisdiction of (ILR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
400 Chesapeake Drive

Redwood City, California 94063

(Address of principal executive offices and zip code)

(650) 241-7900

(Telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject

to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that

the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes X No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting
company, or an emerging growth company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer,  smaller reporting company, and emerging
growth company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O

Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company X
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
Emerging growth company X
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If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with
any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes 0 No X

As of May 10, 2018, the number of outstanding shares of the registrant s common stock, par value $0.001 per share, was 5,562,872.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements concerning our business, operations and financial performance and

condition, as well as our plans, objectives and expectations for our business, operations and financial performance and condition. Any statements

contained herein that are not statements of historical facts may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify

forward-looking statements by terminology such as anticipate, assume, believe, contemplate, continue, could, due, estimate, expe
may, objective, plan, predict, potential, positioned, seek, should, target, will, would and other similar expressions that are |

indicate future events and future trends, or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements

include, but are not limited to, statements about:

. the outcome of and expectations regarding our clinical studies, including our INSIGHT trial and plans to
conduct further clinical studies;

. our plans to modify our current products, or develop new products, to address additional indications;
. our ability to obtain additional financing through future equity or debt financings;

. the expected timing of 510(k) clearances by FDA for enhanced versions of Pantheris;

. the expected timing of 510(k) submission to FDA, and associated marketing clearances by FDA, for

additional versions of Pantheris designed for use in smaller vessels;

. the expected growth in our business and our organization;

. our expectations regarding government and third-party payor coverage and reimbursement, including the
ability of Pantheris to qualify for reimbursement codes used by other atherectomy products;

. our ability to continue as a going concern;
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. our ability to retain and recruit key personnel, including the continued development of our sales and
marketing infrastructure;

. our ability to obtain and maintain intellectual property protection for our products;

. our estimates of our expenses, ongoing losses, future revenue, capital requirements and our needs for, or
ability to obtain, additional financing;

. our expectations regarding revenue, cost of revenue, gross margins, and expenses, including research and
development and selling, general and administrative expenses;

. our expectations regarding the time during which we will be an emerging growth company under the
Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act;

. our ability to identify and develop new and planned products and acquire new products;
. our financial performance;
. our ability to remain in compliance with laws and regulations that currently apply or become applicable to

our business, both in the United States and internationally; and

. developments and projections relating to our competitors or our industry.
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We believe that it is important to communicate our future expectations to our investors. However, there may be events in the future that we are
not able to accurately predict or control and that may cause our actual results to differ materially from the expectations we describe in our
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on management s current expectations, estimates, forecasts and
projections about our business and the industry in which we operate and management s beliefs and assumptions and are not guarantees of future
performance or development and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that are in some cases beyond our control.

As aresult, any or all of our forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may turn out to be inaccurate. Factors that may
cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, among other things, those listed under Risk Factors and elsewhere in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We urge you to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We assume no obligation to update or revise these
forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available in the future.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee that the future results, levels of activity, performance or events and
circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to conform these statements
to actual results or to changes in our expectations.

You should read this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the documents that we reference in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and have filed
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) as exhibits to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q with the understanding
that our actual future results, levels of activity, performance and events and circumstances may be materially different from what we expect.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AVINGER, INC.

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $140 and $146 at March 31,
2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Other assets

Total assets $

Liabilities and stockholders equity (deficit)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $

Accrued compensation

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Borrowings

Preferred stock dividends payable

Total current liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders equity (deficit):

Preferred stock issuable in series, par value of $0.001
Shares authorized: 5,000,000 at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Shares issued and outstanding: 52,762 and none at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively

Common stock, par value of $0.001

Shares authorized: 100,000,000 at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017

March 31,
2018

14418 $

1,354
4,007
1,163
20,942

2,431
590
23,963

2,160
955
907

7,521
410

11,953
111
12,064

December 31,
2017

5,389

1,127
4,295
640
11,451

2,950
687
15,088

1,273
863
3,597
44,744

50,477
301
50,778
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Shares issued and outstanding: 4,384,224 and 833,597 at March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, respectively

Additional paid-in capital 323,504 265,636
Accumulated deficit (311,608) (301,327)
Total stockholders equity (deficit) 11,899 (35,690)
Total liabilities and stockholders equity (deficit) $ 23963 $ 15,088

See accompanying notes.
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AVINGER, INC.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit (loss)

Operating expenses:

Research and development

Selling, general and administrative

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Interest income

Interest expense

Other income (expense), net

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Accretion of preferred stock dividends

Deemed dividend arising from beneficial conversion feature of convertible preferred stock
Net loss applicable to common stockholders

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted

Weighted average common shares used to compute net loss per share, basic and diluted

See accompanying notes.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2018
1,809
1,415
394

1,777
4,260
6,037

(5,643)
33
(4,672)
1
(10,281)
(410)
(5,216)

(15,907)
(7.99)
1,992

$

&

2017
3,491
4,075
(584)

3,923
9,318
13,241
(13,825)
32
(1,550)
3
(15,340)

(15,340)
(25.74)
596

10
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AVINGER, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(unaudited)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss $
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of debt issuance costs and debt discount

Stock-based compensation

Noncash interest expense and other charges

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable

Provision for excess and obsolete inventories

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Other long-term liabilities and accrued interest

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal paydown of capital lease obligations

Proceeds from the issuance of convertible preferred stock, net of issuance costs
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock related to CRG loan, net of issuance costs
Proceeds from public offerings, net of issuance costs

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $

Noncash operating and financing activities:

Conversion of CRG loan principal into Series A preferred stock $
Series A preferred stock accrued dividends $
Deemed dividend arising from beneficial conversion feature of convertible preferred

stock $

Three Months Ended March 31,

2018
(10,281)

277
(128)

619

4,705
(6)
79

(221)
563
(523)
98
486
92
(2,288)
(191)
(6,877)

46
46

15,534

326
15,860

9,029

5,389
14,418

38,000
410

5,216

(15,340)

428
62
1,542
536
94
1,257

1,387
(1,165)
(697)
(446)
(619)
(8)

(294)
(13,263)

29)
29)
(6)
236
230
(13,062)

36,096
23,034

1,193

93

11
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See accompanying notes.
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AVINGER, INC.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

1. Organization

Organization, Nature of Business

Avinger, Inc. (the Company ), a Delaware corporation, was founded in March 2007 by cardiologist and medical device entrepreneur Dr. John B.
Simpson. The Company designs, manufactures and sells image-guided, catheter-based systems that are used by physicians to treat patients with
peripheral artery disease ( PAD ). Patients with PAD have a build-up of plaque in the arteries that supply blood to areas away from the heart,
particularly the pelvis and legs. The Company manufactures and sells a suite of products in the United States ( U.S. ) and in select international
markets. The Company has developed its Lumivascular platform, which integrates optical coherence tomography ( OCT ) visualization with
interventional catheters and is the industry s only system that provides real-time intravascular imaging during the treatment portion of PAD
procedures. The Company s Lumivascular platform consists of a capital component, Lightbox, as well as a variety of disposable catheter
products. The Company s current products include its non-imaging catheters, Wildcat and Kittycat, as well as its Lumivascular platform
products, Ocelot, Ocelot PIXL and Ocelot MVRX, all of which are designed to allow physicians to penetrate a total blockage in an artery,

known as a chronic total occlusion ( CTO ). In March 2016, the Company also received 510(k) clearance from the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration ( FDA ) for commercialization of Pantheris, the Company s image-guided atherectomy system, designed to allow physicians to
precisely remove arterial plaque in PAD patients. The Company commenced sales of Pantheris in the U.S. and select international

markets promptly thereafter. The Company is located in Redwood City, California.

Liquidity Matters

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board ( FASB ) issued Accounting Standards Update ( ASU ) No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern
(Subtopic 205-40) effective December 31, 2016, which requires the Company to make certain disclosures if it concludes that there is substantial
doubt about the entity s ability to continue as a going concern within one year from the date of the issuance of these financial statements. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. In the course of its activities, the Company has incurred
losses and negative cash flows from operations since its inception. As of March 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $311,608.
The Company expects to incur losses for the foreseeable future. The Company believes that its cash and cash equivalents of $14,418,000 at
March 31, 2018 and expected revenues will be sufficient to allow the Company to fund its current operations until approximately October 31,
2018. The Company will seek additional sources of funding in the form of debt financing or equity issuances, however, there can be no
assurance that the Company will be successful in acquiring additional funding at levels sufficient to fund its operations. These conditions raise
substantial doubt about the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. If the Company is unable to raise additional capital in sufficient
amounts or on terms acceptable to it, the Company may have to significantly reduce its operations or delay, scale back or discontinue the
development of one or more of its products. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. The Company s ultimate success will largely depend on its continued development of innovative medical technologies, its ability to
successfully commercialize its products and its ability to raise significant additional funding. Additionally, due to the substantial doubt about the

13
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Company s ability to continue operating as a going concern and the material adverse change clause in the Loan Agreement with CRG Partners
IIT L.P. and certain of its affiliated funds (collectively CRG ), the entire amount of borrowings at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 has been classified as current in these financial statements. CRG has not invoked the material
adverse change clause. On November 3, 2017, the Company entered into a purchase agreement with Lincoln Park
Capital Fund, LLC ( Lincoln Park ), pursuant to which Lincoln Park is obligated to purchase, at the Company s request,
up to $15,000,000 of the Company s common stock over a 30-month period, subject to certain limitations set forth in
the agreement (the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement ). As a fee for Lincoln Park s commitment to purchase such
shares, the Company issued 23,584 shares of common stock to Lincoln Park on November 3, 2017. As obligated

under a registration rights agreement entered into with Lincoln Park in connection with the Purchase Agreement, the
Company filed a registration statement on Form S-1 on November 6, 2017 for up to 248,750 of such shares, which
registration statement was declared effective by the SEC on November 17, 2017.

14
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Public Offerings

In January 2015, the Company issued and sold 125,000 shares of its common stock in its initial public offering ( IPO ) at a public offering price of
$520.00 per share, for net proceeds of approximately $56,897,000 after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of

approximately $4,550,000 and expenses of approximately $3,553,000. Upon the closing of the PO, all shares of
convertible preferred stock then outstanding converted into an aggregate of 174,028 shares of common stock resulting

in the reclassification of $137,626,000 from outside of stockholders equity to additional paid-in capital.

On February 3, 2016, the Company filed a universal shelf registration statement to offer up to $150,000,000 of its securities and entered into an
at-the-market program pursuant to a Sales Agreement with Cowen and Company ( Cowen ), through which it may, from time to time, issue and
sell shares of common stock having an aggregate offering value of up to $50,000,000. The shelf registration statement also covers the resale of

the shares sold to CRG in September 2015. The registration statement was declared effective by the SEC on March 8,

2016. During the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company sold no shares of common stock

through the at-the-market program. Due to the SEC s baby shelf rules, which prohibit companies with a public float of
less than $75 million from issuing securities under a shelf registration statement in excess of one-third of such

company s public float in a twelve-month period, the Company is unable to issue more shares in its at-the-market

program at this time. In August 2016, the Company issued and sold 246,445 shares of its common stock in its

follow-on public offering, which includes the exercise in full by the underwriters of their option to purchase 32,145

shares of common stock, at a public offering price of $140.00 per share. Net proceeds from the follow-on public

offering were approximately $31,549,000 after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately
$2,415,000 and expenses of approximately $538,000.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles ( U.S. GAAP ) and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. The accompanying unaudited condensed
interim financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the annual financial statements and, in the
opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair
statement of the Company s financial information. The results for the three months ended March 31, 2018, are not
necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the year ending December 31, 2018, or for any other interim period
or for any future year. The December 31, 2017 condensed balance sheet data has been derived from audited financial
statements. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to SEC rules and regulations relating to interim
financial statements. These unaudited condensed financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements included in the Company s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, which was
filed with the SEC on March 30, 2018. The Company s significant accounting policies are more fully described in

15
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Note 2 of the Notes to Financial Statements included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2018.

On January 30, 2018, the Company s Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Company s amended and restated certificate of
incorporation to effect a 1-for-40 reverse stock split of the Company s common stock. The par value of the common stock and convertible
preferred stock was not adjusted as a result of the reverse stock split. All common stock, stock options and warrants, and per share amounts in
the financial statements have been retroactively adjusted for all periods presented to give effect to the reverse stock split. The reverse stock split
was effected on January 30, 2018.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts and disclosures reported in the financial statements. Management uses significant judgment when making estimates related to its

common stock valuation and related stock-based compensation, the valuation of the common stock warrants, the valuation of
compound embedded derivatives, provisions for doubtful accounts receivable and excess and obsolete inventories,
clinical trial accruals, and its reserves for sales returns and warranty costs. Management bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Although these estimates are based on the Company s knowledge of current
events and actions it may undertake in the future, actual results may ultimately materially differ from these estimates
and assumptions.

16
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has evaluated the estimated fair value of its financial instruments as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. Financial
instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, and other current liabilities and borrowings. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, and other current liabilities approximate their respective fair values
because of the short-term nature of those instruments. Based upon the borrowing terms and conditions currently available to the Company, the
carrying values of the borrowings approximate their fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are considered available-for-sale marketable securities and are recorded at fair value, using level 1 inputs, based
on quoted market prices. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company s cash equivalents are entirely comprised of investments
in money market funds. Any related unrealized gains and losses are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) and included as a separate
component of stockholders equity (deficit). There were no unrealized gains and losses as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. Any
realized gains and losses and interest and dividends on available-for-sale securities are included in interest income or expense and computed
using the specific identification cost method.

Concentration of Credit Risk, and Other Risks and Uncertainties

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable to the
extent of the amounts recorded on the balance sheets.

The Company s policy is to invest in cash and cash equivalents, consisting of money market funds. These financial instruments are held in
Company accounts at one financial institution. The counterparties to the agreements relating to the Company s investments consist of financial
institutions of high credit standing.

The Company provides for uncollectible amounts when specific credit problems arise. Management s estimates for uncollectible amounts have
been adequate, and management believes that all significant credit risks have been identified at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

The Company s accounts receivable are due from a variety of health-care organizations in the United States and select international markets. At
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, there were no customers that represented 10% or more of the Company s accounts receivable. For the

three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no customers that represented 10% or more of revenues.
Disruption of sales orders or a deterioration of financial condition of its customers would have a negative impact on
the Company s financial position and results of operations.

17
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The Company manufactures its commercial products in-house, including Pantheris and the Ocelot family of catheters. Certain of the Company s
product components and sub-assemblies continue to be manufactured by sole suppliers. Disruption in component or sub-assembly supply from
these manufacturers or from in-house production would have a negative impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

The Company is subject to certain risks, including that its devices may not be approved or cleared for marketing by governmental authorities or
be successfully marketed. There can be no assurance that the Company s products will achieve widespread adoption in the marketplace, nor can
there be any assurance that existing devices or any future devices can be developed or manufactured at an acceptable cost and with appropriate
performance characteristics. The Company is also subject to risks common to companies in the medical device industry, including, but not
limited to, new technological innovations, dependence upon third-party payors to provide adequate coverage and reimbursement, dependence on
key personnel and suppliers, protection of proprietary technology, product liability claims, and compliance with government regulations.

Existing or future devices developed by the Company may require approvals or clearances from the FDA or international regulatory agencies. In
addition, in order to continue the Company s operations, compliance with various federal and state laws is required. If the Company were denied
or delayed in receiving such approvals or clearances, it may be necessary to adjust operations to align with the Company s currently approved
portfolio. If clearance for the products in the current portfolio were withdrawn by the FDA, this may have a material adverse impact on the
Company.

Revenue Recognition

The Company s revenues are derived from (1) sale of its Lightbox (2) sale of disposables, which consist of catheters and accessories, and (3) sale
of customer service contracts. The Company sells its products directly to hospitals and medical centers as well as through
distributors. The Company accounts for a contract with a customer when there is a legally enforceable contract
between the Company

18
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and the customer, the rights of the parties are identified, the contract has commercial substance, and collectability of the contract consideration is
probable. The Company s revenues are measured based on consideration specified in the contract with each customer, net of any sales incentives

and taxes collected from customers that are remitted to government authorities. For all sales, the Company uses either a signed
agreement or a binding purchase order as evidence of an arrangement. The Company s revenue recognition policies
generally result in revenue recognition at the following points:

1. Lightbox sales: The Company sells its products directly to hospitals and medical centers. Provided
all other criteria for revenue recognition have been met, the Company recognizes revenue for Lightbox sales directly
to end customers when delivery and acceptance occurs, which is defined as receipt by the Company of an executed
form by the customer acknowledging that the training and installation process is complete.

2. Sales of disposables: Disposable revenues consist of sales of the Company s catheters and
accessories and are recognized when the product has shipped, risk of loss and title has passed to the customer and
collectability is reasonably assured.

3. Service revenue: Service revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the service period. To date,
service revenue has been insignificant.

The Company offers its customers the ability to purchase or lease its Lightbox. In addition, the Company provides a Lightbox under
a limited commercial evaluation program to allow certain strategic accounts to install and utilize the Lightbox for a
limited trial period of three to six months. When a Lightbox is placed under a lease agreement or under a commercial
evaluation program, the Company retains title to the equipment and it remains capitalized on its balance sheet under
property and equipment. Depreciation expense on these placed Lightboxes is recorded to cost of revenues on a
straight-line basis. The costs to maintain these placed Lightboxes are charged to cost of revenues as incurred.

The Company evaluates its lease and commercial evaluation program agreements and accounts for these contracts under the guidance in ASC
840, Leases and Accounting Standards Update No. 2014 09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The guidance requires
arrangement consideration to be allocated between a lease deliverable and a non-lease deliverable based upon the relative selling-price of the
deliverables, using a specific hierarchy. The hierarchy is as follows: vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value of the respective elements,
third-party evidence of selling price, or best estimate of selling price ( BESP ). The Company allocates arrangement consideration using BESP.

The Company assessed whether the embedded lease is an operating lease or sales-type lease. Based on the Company s assessment of the
guidance and given that any payments under the lease agreements are dependent upon contingent future sales, it was determined that
collectability of the minimum lease payments is not reasonably predictable. Accordingly, the Company concluded the embedded lease did not
meet the criteria of a sales-type lease and accounts for it as an operating lease. The Company recognizes revenue allocated to the lease as the
contingent disposable product purchases are delivered and are included in revenues within the statement of operations and comprehensive loss.

19
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For sales through distributors, the Company recognizes revenue when title to the product and the risk of loss transfers from the Company to the
distributor. The distributors are responsible for all marketing, sales, training and warranty in their respective territories. The standard terms and
conditions contained in the Company s distribution agreements do not provide price protection or stock rotation rights to any of its distributors. In
addition, its distributor agreements do not allow the distributor to return or exchange products, and the distributor is obligated to pay the

Company upon invoice regardless of its ability to resell the product.

The Company estimates reductions in revenue for potential returns of products by customers. In making such estimates, management analyzes
historical returns, current economic trends and changes in customer demand and acceptance of its products. The Company expenses shipping
and handling costs as incurred and includes them in the cost of revenues. In those cases where the Company bills shipping and handling costs to
customers, it will classify the amounts billed as a component of revenue.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues consists primarily of manufacturing overhead costs, material costs and direct labor. A significant portion of the Company s cost
of revenues currently consists of manufacturing overhead costs. These overhead costs include the cost of quality assurance, material
procurement, inventory control, facilities, equipment and operations supervision and management. Cost of revenues also includes depreciation
expense for the Lightboxes under lease agreements and certain direct costs such as shipping costs.
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Product Warranty Costs

The Company typically offers a one-year warranty for parts and labor on its products commencing upon the transfer of title and risk of loss to
the customer. The Company accrues for the estimated cost of product warranties upon invoicing its customers, based on historical results.
Warranty costs are reflected in the statement of operations and comprehensive loss as a cost of revenues. The warranty obligation is affected by
product failure rates, material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates,
material usage or service delivery costs differ from these estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be required. Periodically
the Company assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary. Warranty provisions and claims are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Amount
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ (390)
Warranty provision
Usage/Release 5
Balance at March 31, 2018 $ (385)

Net Loss per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period, without consideration for potential dilutive common shares.
Diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock and dilutive potential shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Any common
stock shares subject to repurchase are excluded from the calculations as the continued vesting of such shares is contingent upon the holders
continued service to the Company. As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no shares subject to repurchase. Since the Company was in a loss
position for all periods presented, basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is the same as diluted net loss per share
attributable to common stockholders as the inclusion of all potentially dilutive common shares would have been anti-dilutive.

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders was determined as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2018 2017
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (15,907) $ (15,340)
Weighted average common stock outstanding 1,992 596
Net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted $ (7.99) $ (25.74)

The following potentially dilutive securities outstanding have been excluded from the computations of diluted weighted average shares
outstanding because such securities have an anti-dilutive impact due to losses reported:
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Three Months Ended March 31,

2018 2017
Common stock warrants 18,032,715 53,803
Common stock options 55,862 112,259
Preferred stock 52,762
Unvested restricted stock units 3,457 11,115
18,144,796 177,177

Comprehensive Loss

For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, there was no difference between comprehensive loss and the Company s net loss.
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Segment and Geographical Information

The Company operates and manages its business as one reportable and operating segment. The Company s chief executive officer, who is the
chief operating decision maker, reviews financial information on an aggregate basis for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial

performance. Primarily all of the Company s long-lived assets are based in the United States. Long-lived assets are
comprised of property and equipment. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, 92% and 96%,
respectively, of the Company s revenues were in the United States based on the shipping location of the external
customer.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which
supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. This ASU is based on the principle that revenue is
recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from
costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. In August 2015, FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date, which effectively delayed the adoption date by one year, to an effective date for public entities for
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) : Principal Versus Agent
Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross Versus Net), to clarify certain aspects of the principal-versus-agent guidance in its new revenue
recognition standard.

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) : Identifying Performance Obligations
and Licensing to clarify how to identify the performance obligations and the licensing implementation guidance in its new revenue recognition
standard.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-12, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) : Narrow-Scope Improvements and
Practical Expedients, to address certain issues identified by the Transition Resource Group, (the TRG ) in the guidance on assessing
collectability, presentation of sales tax, noncash consideration, and completed contracts and contracts modifications at transition.

The adoption of ASC 606, using the modified retrospective approach in the first quarter of 2018 did not have a material impact on the Company s
financial statements
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) . This update requires an entity to recognize assets and liabilities for
leases with lease terms of more than 12 months on the balance sheet. ASU 2016-02 is effective for public entities for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018. The Company is in the process of developing a project plan and establishing teams to implement the guidance. Although
the Company is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures, the Company
expects that all of its operating lease commitments with a term will be subject to the new standard and recognized as operating lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets upon adoption.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-08, Receivables Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20) : Premium
Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. This update shortens the premium amortization period for certain purchased callable debt
securities held at a premium. ASU 2017-08 is effective for public entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company
has not determined the potential effects of the guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-02, Income Statement Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) . This update
provides companies with the option to reclassify stranded tax effects caused by the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the 2017 Tax Act) from
accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings. ASU 2018-02 is effective for public entities for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company has not determined the potential effects of the guidance on its consolidated
financial statements.

In March 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-05, Income Taxes (Topic 740) . This update amends the certain paragraphs in ASC 740 to
reflect the provisions of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 118, which provides guidance for companies that are not able to complete their
accounting for income tax effects of the 2017 Tax Act in the period of enactment. ASU 2018-05 is effective immediately. The adoption of this
ASU did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.
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3. Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is an exit price, representing the
amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair
value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or a
liability. A three-tier fair value hierarchy is established as a basis for considering such assumptions and for inputs used in the valuation
methodologies in measuring fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market
data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, cash equivalents were all categorized as Level 1 and consisted of money market funds. As of
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, there were no financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 2 or 3. There were no transfers

between fair value hierarchy levels during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.

4. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

March 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Raw materials $ 759 $ 1,286
Work-in-process 187
Finished products 3,061 3,009
Total inventories $ 4,007 $ 4,295
10
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5. Borrowings

CRG

On September 22, 2015, the Company entered into a Term Loan Agreement (the Loan Agreement ) with CRG under which,
subject to certain conditions, the Company had the right to borrow up to $50,000,000 in principal amount from CRG
on or before March 29, 2017. The Company borrowed $30,000,000 on September 22, 2015. The Company borrowed
an additional $10,000,000 on June 15, 2016 under the Loan Agreement. The Company would have been eligible to
borrow an additional $10,000,000, on or prior to March 29, 2017, upon achievement of certain revenue milestones,
among other conditions, but those milestones were not achieved.

On October 28, 2016, the Company and CRG amended the Loan Agreement to reduce the minimum revenue that the Company was required to
achieve in 2016 to $18,000,000. On February 14, 2018, the Company and CRG further amended the Loan Agreement concurrent with the
conversion of $38,000,000 of the principal amount of the senior secured term loan (plus $3,800,000 in back-end fees and prepayment premium
applicable thereto) into a newly authorized Series A convertible preferred stock (see Note 8, below). For the three months ended March 31,
20138, the $3,800,000 was accounted for in the condensed statement of operations and comprehensive loss as interest expense.

Under the Loan Agreement, as in effect prior to amendment, the first sixteen quarterly payments were to be interest only payments, and the last
eight quarterly payments were to be equal installments in which interest and principal amounts would be paid. Interest is calculated at a fixed
rate of 12.5% per annum. The Company makes quarterly payments of interest only in arrears commencing on September 30, 2015. During the
interest only period, the Company had the right to elect to make the 12.5% interest payment by making a cash payment for 8.5% per annum of
interest and making a payment-in-kind ( PIK ) for the remaining amount, for which the 4.0% per annum of interest would be added to the
outstanding principal amount of the borrowings. To date, the Company has elected the PIK interest option to the extent available and has made a
cash payment for the remaining amount. Principal is repayable in eight equal quarterly installments during the final two years of the term. Under
the original Loan Agreement, all unpaid principal, and accrued and unpaid interest, was to be due and payable in full on September 30, 2021.

The Company may voluntarily prepay the borrowings in full, with a prepayment premium beginning at 5.0% and declining by 1.0% annually
thereafter, with no premium being payable if prepayment occurs after the fifth year of the loan. Each tranche of borrowing required the payment,
on the borrowing date, of a financing fee equal to 1.5% of the borrowed loan principal, which is recorded as a discount to the debt. In addition, a
facility fee equal to 7.0% of the amounts borrowed plus any PIK was to be payable at the end of the term or when the borrowings are repaid in
full. A long-term liability is being accreted using the effective interest method for the facility fee over the term of the Loan Agreement with a
corresponding discount to the debt. The borrowings are collateralized by a security interest in substantially all of the Company s assets. The Loan
Agreement requires that the Company adheres to certain affirmative and negative covenants, including financial reporting requirements, certain
minimum financial covenants for pre-specified liquidity and revenue requirements and a prohibition against the incurrence of indebtedness, or
creation of additional liens, other than as specifically permitted by the terms of the Loan Agreement. In particular, the covenants of the original
Loan Agreement included a covenant that the Company maintain a minimum of $5,000,000 of cash and certain cash equivalents, and the
Company had to achieve minimum revenue of $7,000,000 in 2015, $23,000,000 in 2016, $40,000,000 in 2017, $50,000,000 in
2018, $60,000,000 in 2019 and $70,000,000 in 2020 and in each year thereafter, as applicable. On October 28, 2016,
the Company amended the terms of the Loan Agreement, to reduce the minimum revenue that the Company must
achieve in 2016 to $18,000,000. If the Company fails to meet the applicable minimum revenue target in any calendar
year, the Loan Agreement provides the Company with a cure right if it prepays a portion of the outstanding principal

equal to 2.0 times the revenue shortfall. In addition, the Loan Agreement prohibits the payment of cash dividends on
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the Company s capital stock and also places restrictions on mergers, sales of assets, investments, incurrence of liens,
incurrence of indebtedness and transactions with affiliates. CRG may accelerate the payment terms of the Loan
Agreement upon the occurrence of certain events of default set forth therein, which include the failure of the Company
to make timely payments of amounts due under the Loan Agreement, the failure of the Company to adhere to the
covenants set forth in the Loan Agreement, the insolvency of the Company or upon the occurrence of a material
adverse change.

On December 14, 2017, the Company entered into a waiver and consent agreement (the Waiver and Consent ) with CRG. The Waiver and
Consent provided for the waiver of the minimum required revenue financial covenant for the twelve-month period beginning January 1, 2017, as
required under the terms of the Loan Agreement. Pursuant to the Waiver and Consent, CRG also consented to the Company s payment of the
cash interest payment due on December 31, 2017 in the form of a PIK loan instead.

On February 14, 2018, the Company entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Loan Agreement to, among other things:

. extend the interest only payment period and the period during which the Company may elect to pay a portion
of the interest in PIK interest payments through June 30, 2021;

11
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. permit the Company to make the entire interest payment for payment dates in 2018 and 2019 in PIK interest
payments, provided no default has occurred and is continuing;

. extend the maturity date to June 30, 2023;

. modify certain of the covenants, including the indebtedness covenant, lien covenant and restricted payments
covenant, to eliminate or modify permitted exceptions to the restrictions in those covenants;

. modify the financial covenants to reduce the minimum liquidity requirement to $3,500,000 at all times, to
eliminate the minimum revenue requirements for 2018 and 2019, and to reduce the minimum revenue requirements to
$15,000,000 million for 2020, $20,000,000 for 2021 and $25,000,000 for 2022; and

. provide CRG with board observer rights.

As of March 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all applicable covenants under the Loan Agreement.

As of March 31, 2018, principal and PIK payments under the Loan Agreement were as follows (in thousands):

Principal and PIK
Period Ending March 31, Loan Repayments
2018 $
2019
2020
2021
2022 and after 2,000
2,000
Add: Accretion of closing fees 994
Add: PIK 5,312
8,306
Less: Amount representing debt financing costs (846)
Borrowings, net of current portion (principal only) 7,460
Add: Acrued interest 61
Borrowings, net of current portion as shown $ 7,521
12
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Contemporaneously with the execution of the Loan Agreement in September 2015, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement
(the CRG Purchase Agreement ) with CRG which allowed it to purchase up to $5,000,000 of the Company s common stock. CRG purchased
8,705 shares of common stock on September 22, 2015 at a price of $559.64 per share, which is the 10-day average of closing prices of the
Company s common stock ending on September 21, 2015. The closing price on September 22, 2015 was $558.80 yielding a $0.84 per share
premium. Both the premium and the issuance costs were allocated to the borrowings under Loan Agreement and the common stock purchase
under the CRG Purchase Agreement based on the relative fair values of each security. The portion of the premium allocated to the borrowings is
being amortized over the term of the Loan Agreement. Pursuant to the CRG Purchase Agreement, the Company filed a shelf registration
statement covering, among other things, the resale of the shares sold to CRG and must comply with certain affirmative covenants during the time
that such registration statement remains in effect.

In connection with the initial drawdown under the Loan Agreement, the Company recorded a debt discount of $876,000 as contra-debt. The debt
discount comprised financing fees of $450,000, paid directly to CRG, and an allocation of the other costs directly attributable to the Loan
Agreement and CRG Securities Purchase Agreement of $541,000 net of the common stock premium of $115,000 based on the relative fair
values of each security. In connection with the June 2016 drawdown under the Loan Agreement, the Company recorded a debt discount of
$275,000 which comprised financing fees of $150,000, paid directly to CRG, and other costs directly attributable to the Loan Agreement with
CRG of $125,000. Concurrent with the Amendment No.2 to the Loan Agreement, the Company recorded an additional debt discount of
$154,000 of issuance costs. The debt discount is being amortized as non-cash interest expense using the effective interest method over the term
of the Loan Agreement. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the balance of the aggregate debt discount was $840,000 and $716,000,
respectively. The Company s interest expense associated with the debt discount amounted to $26,000 and $30,000 during the three months
ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

As noted in Note 1 to these financial statements, due to the substantial doubt about the Company s ability to continue operating as a going
concern and the material adverse change clause in the CRG Loan Agreement, the entire amount of borrowings at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 has been classified as current in these financial statements. CRG has not invoked the material adverse change clause.

PDL BioPharma

On April 18, 2013, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement ( Agreement ) with PDL BioPharma, Inc. ( PDL ) whereby PDL agreed to loan
up to $40,000,000. Contemporaneous with the execution of the Agreement the Company borrowed an initial $20,000,000 ( Term Note ).

13
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The Term Note was scheduled to mature April 18, 2018, had a stated interest rate of 12.0% per annum and could be prepaid by the Company at
any time. The Company paid interest-only through the first ten quarters and, thereafter, repayment of principal in equal installments including
accrued and unpaid interest, payable each quarter. As provided under the terms of the Agreement, for the first eight quarterly interest payments,
or through 2015, on the Term Note the Company elected to convert an amount of interest, up to 1.5% per annum, into additional loans, referred
to as PIK loans. The PIK loans accrued interest and were added to the aggregate principal balance of the Term Note.

In September 2015, in connection with the consummation of the Loan Agreement with CRG, the Company repaid all amounts outstanding under
the Agreement. The payoff amount of $21,363,000 included accrued interest through the repayment date of $563,000 and $200,000 as an

end-of-term final payment fee recorded in other income (expense), net on the statement of loss and comprehensive loss. For the three
months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company incurred interest expense of $303,000 and $241,000,
respectively.

In addition to the interest and principal payments, the Company also paid a royalty, referred to as Assigned Interests, equal to
1.8% of the Company s quarterly net revenues. Upon the prepayment of the Term Note, the Company s obligations
relating to Assigned Interests continue, and are payable through the maturity date at a reduced rate of 0.9% of the
quarterly net revenues, subject to certain quarterly minimum mandatory amounts, which are payable monthly. The
ongoing obligation was determined to be an embedded element of the Agreement and cannot be bifurcated from the
Term Note for accounting purposes. Accordingly, the Company continued to account for the Assigned Interests
obligation relating to future royalties as a debt instrument by applying the retrospective approach and reviews its
estimate of forecasted Assigned Interests payable annually. Under the retrospective method, the Company computes a
new effective interest rate based on the original carrying amount, actual cash flows to date, and remaining estimated
cash flows over the maturity date. The new effective interest rate, 20.4% as of December 31, 2016, was used to adjust
the carrying amount to the present value of the revised estimated cash flows, discounted at the new effective interest
rate. At the time of the repayment the resulting increase in the carrying value of the Assigned Interests, of $942,000,
was recognized as a component of other income (expense), net, on the statements of operations and comprehensive
loss. The Company has an aggregate accrual for its Assigned Interests obligations of $61,000 and $364,000,
representing the net present value of the future minimum royalty obligation as of March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, respectively. The Assigned Interest liability was included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities
as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, on the balance sheet.

Additionally, until April 2018, the Company must periodically pay PDL a percentage of its net revenue and comply with certain affirmative
covenants and negative covenants limiting its ability to, among other things, undergo a change in control or dispose of assets, in each case
subject to certain exceptions. The Company was in compliance with the covenants under the Agreement as of March 31, 2018.

14
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6. Capital Leases

Capital lease obligations consist of leased office equipment. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the aggregate amount of capital
leases recorded within property and equipment, net, on the accompanying balance sheet is $9,000 and $14,000, respectively. The current portion
of the capital lease obligations is included in accrued liabilities and the balance included within other long-term liabilities represents the
long-term portion.

The future minimum lease payments as of March 31, 2018, are as follows (in thousands):

Future Minimum

Period ending December 31, Lease Payments
2018 $ 8
2019 1
Total minimum payments 9
Less: Amount representing future interest

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 9

7. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The Company s operating lease obligations primarily consist of leased office, laboratory, and manufacturing space under a non-cancelable
operating lease that expires in November 2019. The lease agreement includes a renewal provision allowing the Company to extend this lease for
an additional period of three years. In addition to the minimum future lease commitments presented below, the lease requires the Company to
pay property taxes, insurance, maintenance, and repair costs. The lease includes a rent holiday concession and escalation clauses for increased
rent over the lease term. Rent expense is recognized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease. The Company records deferred
rent calculated as the difference between rent expense and the cash rental payments. In connection with the facility lease, the landlord
also provided incentives of $369,000 to the Company in the form of leasehold improvements. These amounts were
reflected as deferred rent and were amortized as a reduction to rent expense over the original term of the Company s
operating lease. In February 2016, the Company entered into an additional non-cancelable operating lease for
warehouse and storage space that expires in November 2019. Rent expense was $240,000 and $506,000 for the three
months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.

On October 19, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement to sublease one of its facilities (Note 10). The sublease agreement commenced on
approximately December 1, 2017 and is scheduled to expire on November 15, 2019 (which is 15 days prior to the expiration of the facility
lease). The sublessee pays a base rent of $3.25 per rentable square foot, for a total of $79,950 per month, increasing to $3.35 per rentable square
foot, for a total of $82,410 per month as of December 1, 2018. In addition to the base rent, the sublessee pays the Landlord s operating expenses
and property taxes due and payable with respect to the subleased facility.
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The future aggregate minimum lease payments, net of sublease income, as of March 31, 2018, are as follows (in thousands):

Future Minimum

Year ending December 31, Lease Payments

2018 $ 805
2019 1,009
Total minimum lease payments $ 1,814

Purchase Obligations

Purchase obligations consist of agreements to purchase goods and services entered into in the ordinary course of business. The Company had
non-cancellable commitments to suppliers for purchases totaling $1,899,000 and $1,172,000 as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,

respectively.

Indemnification

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts and agreements that contain a variety of representations and warranties and
may provide for indemnification of the counterparty. The Company s exposure under these agreements is unknown because it involves claims
that may be made against it in the future, but have not yet been made. To date, the Company has not been subject to any claims or been required

to defend any action related to its indemnification obligations.
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The Company indemnifies each of its directors and officers for certain events or occurrences, subject to certain limits, while the director is or
was serving at the Company s request in such capacity, as permitted under Delaware law and in accordance with its certificate of incorporation
and bylaws. The term of the indemnification period lasts as long as a director may be subject to any proceeding arising out of acts or omissions
of such director in such capacity. The maximum amount of potential future indemnification is unlimited; however, the Company currently holds
director liability insurance. This insurance allows the transfer of risk associated with the Company s exposure and may enable it to recover a
portion of any future amounts paid. The Company believes that the fair value of these indemnification obligations is minimal. Accordingly, it
has not recognized any liabilities relating to these obligations for any period presented.

Legal Proceedings

Except as set forth below, the Company is not involved in any pending legal proceedings that it believes could have a material adverse effect on
its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. From time to time, the Company may pursue litigation to assert its legal right and
such litigation may be costly and divert the efforts and attention of its management and technical personnel which could adversely affect its
business.

Between May 22, 2017 and May 25, 2017, three purported class action lawsuits were filed in the Superior Court of the State of California,

County of San Mateo ( State Court ), against the Company, certain of its officers and directors and the underwriters of the Company s

January 2015 IPO. The actions were captioned Grotewiel v. Avinger, Inc., et al., No. 17-CIV-02240, Gonzalez v. Avinger, Inc., et al.,

No. 17-CIV-02284, and Olberding v. Avinger, Inc., et al., No. 17-CIV-02307. These lawsuits allege that the registration statement for the
Company s IPO made false and misleading statements and omissions in violation of the Securities Act of 1933. Plaintiffs seek to represent a class
of purchasers of our common stock in and/or traceable to our IPO. Plaintiffs seek, among other things, unspecified compensatory damages,
interest, costs, recission, and attorneys fees. On June 12, 2017, defendants removed these actions to the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California ( Federal Court ), where they were captioned Grotewiel v. Avinger, Inc., No. 17-cv-03400, Gonzalez v.

Avinger, Inc., No. 17-cv-03401, and Olberding v. Avinger, Inc., No. 17-cv-03398, and where the actions were related and assigned to the same
judge.

On October 11, 2017, the Federal Court appointed a lead plaintiff and approved the selection of a lead counsel in the Grotewiel action ( Federal
Action ). An amended complaint in the Federal Action is due on November 21, 2017. On June 22, 2017, and June 23, 2017, plaintiffs Olberding
and Gonzalez moved to remand their cases to the State Court. Defendants opposed these motions. On July 21, 2017, the Federal Court granted
the motions to remand the Olberding and Gonzalez actions to the State Court. On August 9, 2017, the State Court consolidated the Olberding
and Grotewiel actions under the caption Gonzalez v. Avinger, Inc., et al., No. 17-CIV-02284 ( State Action ). On September 22, 2017, an
amended complaint was filed in the State Action. On October 31, 2017, the parties in the State Action stipulated to a stay of proceedings until

judgment is entered in the Federal Action. On November 2, 2017, pursuant to stipulation of the parties, the State Court
entered an order staying proceedings in the State Action until judgment is entered in the Federal Action.

The Company and its directors believe that the foregoing lawsuits were entirely without merit; however, in the interest of avoiding the cost and
disruption of continuing to defend against these lawsuits, on February 8, 2018, the Company participated in a mediation to explore whether a
settlement could be reached. While a settlement was not reached then, the parties continued discussions and they ultimately reached agreement.
On March 19, 2018, the Company entered into a binding memorandum of understanding to settle the securities class actions pending against the
Company and several of its officers and directors. The settlement is for a total of $5 million and, if approved by the court, will result in a full
release of claims against all defendants. The settlement is subject to final documentation, notice to class members, and approval of the court. The
Company s total contribution to the settlement fund is $1.76 million. As such, the Company included $1.76 million for litigation settlement
within accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 31, 2017. In March 2018, the Company paid out the $1.76 million.
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8. Stockholders Equity (Deficit)

Preferred Stock

As of March 31, 2018, the Company s certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorizes the Company to issue up to 5,000,000
shares of preferred stock with $0.001 par value per share, of which 52,762 shares were issued and outstanding.

Series A Preferred Stock

On February 14, 2018, the Company entered into a Series A Purchase Agreement with CRG, pursuant to which it agreed to convert $38,000,000
of the outstanding principal amount of its senior secured term loan (plus $3,800,000 in back-end fees and
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prepayment premium applicable thereto), totaling $41,800,000, into a newly authorized Series A preferred stock. The

Series A preferred stock is initially convertible into 20,900,000 shares of common stock subject to certain limitations
contained in the Series A Purchase Agreement. Under the terms of the Series A Purchase Agreement, the holders of
Series A preferred stock are entitled to receive annual accruing dividends at a rate of 8%, payable in additional shares
of Series A preferred stock or cash, at the Company s option. The shares of Series A preferred stock have no voting
rights and rank senior to all other classes and series of the Company s equity in terms of repayment and certain other
rights. The Series A preferred stock and any of the Company s common stock issued upon conversion of the Series A
preferred stock are subject to a lockup agreement through February 14, 2019. As of March 31, 2018, 41,800 shares of
Series A preferred stock were outstanding. The Series A preferred stock accrued dividends of $410,000 was included
within borrowings.

Series B Preferred Stock

On February 16, 2018, the Company completed a public offering of 17,979 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock (the Series B preferred
stock ). As a result, the Company received net proceeds of approximately $16.0 million after underwriting discounts, commissions, legal and
accounting fees of approximately $1.9 million. The Series B preferred stock has a liquidation preference of $0.001 per share, full ratchet price
based anti-dilution protection, has no voting rights and is subject to certain ownership limitations. The Series B preferred stock is immediately
convertible at the option of the holder, has no stated maturity, and does not pay regularly stated dividends or interest. As of March 31, 2018,
10,962 shares of Series B preferred stock were outstanding.

The Company evaluated the Series B convertible preferred stock issuance in accordance with the provisions of ASC 815, Derivatives and
Hedging, including consideration of embedded derivatives requiring bifurcation. The issuance of the convertible preferred stock could generate a
beneficial conversion feature (BCF), which arises when a debt or equity security is issued with an embedded conversion option that is beneficial
to the investor or in the money at inception because the conversion option has an effective conversion price that is less than the market price of
the underlying stock at the commitment date. The Company recognized the BCF by allocating the intrinsic value of the conversion option, which
is the number of shares of common stock available upon conversion multiplied by the difference between the effective conversion price per
share and the fair value of common stock per share on the commitment date, to additional paid-in capital, resulting in a discount on the
convertible preferred stock. As the Series B convertible preferred stock may be converted immediately, the Company recognized a BCF of $5.2
million as a deemed dividend in the condensed consolidated statements of operations as of February 16, 2018. This one-time, non-cash charge
impacted net loss attributable to common stockholders and net loss per share attributable to common stockholders for the three months ended
March 31, 2018.

Common Stock

As of March 31, 2018, the Company s certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorizes the Company to issue up to 100,000,000
shares of common stock with $0.001 par value per share, of which 4,384,224 shares were issued and outstanding.

Common Stock Warrants
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In connection with the issuance of the Company s Series E Convertible preferred stock in September 2014 through January 2015, the Company
issued, to each investor who purchased shares of Series E Convertible preferred stock, warrants to purchase up to the number of shares of
common stock equal to 50% of the number of shares of the Company s Series E Convertible preferred stock purchased by such investor.

The warrants are immediately exercisable, at an exercise price per share of $504.00, and expire upon the earlier of September 2, 2019 or upon
the consummation of a change of control of the Company. The Company determined that these common stock warrants meet the requirements

for equity classification. In connection with the issuance of its Series E Convertible preferred stock in September through
December 2014, the Company issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 33,314 shares of common stock. The
common stock warrants were recorded at their allocated fair value of $175,000 within stockholders equity (deficit).

In connection with the issuance of the Company s Series E Convertible preferred stock in January 2015, the Company issued warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 6,129 shares of common stock. The common stock warrants were recorded at their allocated fair value of $804,000
within stockholders equity (deficit).

On January 14, 2015, the Company amended its Series E Convertible preferred stock Purchase Agreement to provide for the issuance of
common stock warrants to each investor who purchased shares of Series E Convertible preferred stock equal to 70% of the number of shares of
the Company s Series E Convertible preferred stock purchased by such investor. As with the common stock warrants previously issued, any new
common stock warrants were immediately exercisable, at an exercise price of $504.00 per share, and expire upon the earlier of September 2,
2019 or upon consummation of a change in control of the Company. As a result of this amendment to the Series E Convertible preferred stock
Purchase Agreement, the Company issued additional warrants to purchase 15,801 shares of common stock to investors who previously acquired
shares of Series E Convertible preferred stock from September 2014 through January 2015.

On February 16, 2018, in connection with the Company s completed public offering of Series B preferred stock, the Company issued warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 17,979,000 shares of common stock (the Series B Warrants ). Each share of Series B preferred stock is accompanied by
one warrant that expires on the seventh anniversary of the date of issuance to purchase up to 500 shares of common stock and one warrant that
expires on the earlier of (i) the seventh anniversary of the date of issuance or (ii) the 60th calendar day following the receipt and announcement

of FDA clearance of the Company s Pantheris below-the-knee device (or the same or similar product with a different name) to purchase up to

500 shares of common stock; provided, however, if at any time during such 60-day period the volume weighted average price for any trading

day is less than the then effective exercise price, the termination date shall be extended to the seven year anniversary of the initial exercise date.

The Company assessed the Series B Warrants under FASB ASC 480 and determined that the Series B Warrants were outside the scope of ASC
480. The Company next
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assessed the Series B Warrants under FASB ASC 815. Under the related guidance, a reporting entity shall not consider a contract to be a
derivative instrument if the contract is both (1) indexed to the entity s own stock and (2) classified in stockholders equity. The Company
determined that the Series B Warrants were indexed to the Company s stock, as the agreements do not contain any exercise contingencies and the
Series B Warrants settlement amount equals the difference between the fair value of the Company s common stock price and the Series B
Warrant strike price. The Company also assessed the classification as stockholders equity and determined the Series B Warrants met all of the
criteria for classification as equity under ASC 815. Based on this analysis, the Company determined that the Series B Warrants should be
classified as equity. As of March 31, 2018, Series B Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 17,979,000 shares of common stock were outstanding.

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, warrants to purchase an aggregate of 18,032,715 and 53,715 shares of common stock were
outstanding, respectively.

Stock Plans

In January 2015, the Board of Directors adopted and the Company s stockholders approved the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan ( 2015 Plan ). The
2015 Plan replaced the 2009 Stock Plan (the 2009 Plan ) which was terminated immediately prior to consummation of
the Company s IPO, collectively the Plans. The 2015 Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options ( ISOs ) to
employees and for the grant of nonstatutory stock options ( NSOs ), restricted stock, RSUs, stock appreciation rights,
performance units and performance shares to employees, directors and consultants. Initially a total of 33,000 shares of
common stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to the 2015 Plan. The shares reserved for issuance under the 2015
Plan included shares reserved but not issued under the 2009 Plan, plus any share awards granted under the 2009 Plan
that expire or terminate without having been exercised in full or that are forfeited or repurchased. In addition, the
number of shares available for issuance under the 2015 Plan includes an automatic annual increase on the first day of
each fiscal year beginning in fiscal 2016, equal to the lesser of 42,250 shares, 5.0% of the outstanding shares of
common stock as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year or an amount as determined by the Board of
Directors. For fiscal 2017, the common stock available for issuance under the 2015 Plan was increased by 29,720
shares of common stock. As of March 31, 2018, 121,775 shares were available for grant under the 2015 Plan.

Pursuant to the Plans, ISOs and NSOs may be granted with exercise prices at not less than 100% of the fair value of the common stock on the
date of grant and the exercise price of ISOs granted to a stockholder, who, at the time of grant, owns stock representing more than 10% of the
voting power of all classes of the stock of the Company, shall be not less than 110% of the fair market value per share of common stock on the
date of grant. The Company s Board of Directors determines the vesting schedule of the options. Options granted generally vest over four years
and expire ten years from the date of grant.

Stock option activity under the Plans is set forth below:

Options Outstanding

Aggregate
Number of Weighted Average Intrinsic Value
Shares Exercise Price (in thousands)
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Balance at December 31,

2017 76,644 $ 291.72 $
Options granted $

Options exercised $

Options cancelled (20,782) $ 252.85
Balance at March 31, 2018 55,862 $ 306.18 $

As of March 31, 2018, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and vested was zero. There were no options granted or exercised
during the three months ended March 31, 2018. The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated as the difference between
the exercise prices of the underlying options and the closing market price of the common stock on the date of exercise.
Because of the Company s net operating losses, the Company did not realize any tax benefits from share-based
payment arrangements for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.
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The Company s RSUs vest annually over four years in equal increments. A summary of all RSU activity is presented below:

Weighted Average Weighted Average Aggregate
Number of Grant Date Remaining Intrinsic Value
Shares Fair Value Contractual Term (in thousands)
Awards outstanding at
December 31, 2017 5,089 $ 237.78 287 $ 37
Awarded $
Released (1,166) $ 225.52
Forfeited (466) $ 204.09
Awards outstanding at
March 31, 2018 3,457 $ 246.45 261 $ 5

As of March 31, 2018, $787,000 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to employee RSUs was expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2.6 years. The Company used the closing market price of $1.33 per share at March 31, 2018, to determine the
aggregate intrinsic value.

2015 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In January 2015, the Board of Directors adopted and the Company s stockholders approved the 2015 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ( ESPP )
under which eligible employees are permitted to purchase common stock at a discount through payroll deductions. Initially 12,500 shares of
common stock were reserved for issuance, which is subject to an automatic increase on the first day of each fiscal year, commencing in 2016, by
an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 12,325 shares (ii) 1.5% of the outstanding shares of common stock as of the last day of the immediately
preceding fiscal year; or (iii) an amount as determined by the Board of Directors. For fiscal 2017, the common stock available for issuance under
the ESPP was increased by 8,916 shares of common stock. The price of the common stock purchased will be the lower of 85% of the fair market
value of the common stock at the beginning of an offering period or at the end of a purchase period. The ESPP is intended to qualify as an
employee stock purchase plan within the meaning of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The first offering under the
ESPP began in February 2015. As of March 31, 2018, approximately 27,515 shares of common stock remained reserved for issuance under the
ESPP. The Company incurred $1,000 and $64,000 in stock-based compensation expense related to the ESPP for the three months ended

March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

9. Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation for the Company includes amortization related to all stock options, RSUs and shares issued under the ESPP, based on
the grant-date estimated fair value. The Company estimates the fair value of stock options and shares issued under the ESPP
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Black-Scholes model determines the fair value
of stock-based payment awards based on the fair market value of the Company s common stock on the date of grant
and is affected by assumptions regarding a number of complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but
are not limited to, the fair value of the Company s common stock, and the volatility over the expected term of the
awards. The Company has opted to use the simplified method for estimating the expected term of options, whereby
the expected term equals the arithmetic average of the vesting term and the original contractual term of the option.
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Prior to the Company s IPO in January 2015, due to the Company s limited operating history and a lack of company
specific historical and implied volatility data, the Company based its estimate of expected volatility on the historical
volatility of a group of similar companies that are publicly traded. When selecting these public companies on which it
has based its expected stock price volatility, the Company selected companies with comparable characteristics to it,
including enterprise value, stage of development, risk profile, and position within the industry as well as selecting
companies with historical share price information sufficient to meet the expected life of the stock-based awards. The
historical volatility data was computed using the daily closing prices for the selected companies shares during the
equivalent period of the calculated expected term of the share-based payments. Following the closing of the
Company s IPO, the Company supplements its own available company specific historical volatility with the volatility
of the previously selected peer group of publicly traded companies. The Company will continue to analyze the
historical stock price volatility and expected term assumptions as more historical data for the Company s common
stock becomes available. The risk-free rate assumption is based on the U.S. Treasury instruments with maturities
similar to the expected term of the Company s stock options. The expected dividend assumption is based on the
Company s history of not paying dividends and its expectation that it will not declare dividends for the foreseeable
future.

As noncash stock-based compensation expense recognized in the financial statements is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been
reduced for estimated forfeitures. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company estimated a forfeiture rate for its stock
options and RSUs based on an analysis of its actual forfeitures based on actual forfeiture experience and other factors.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, over the service period to the extent that actual
forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, from prior estimates. Forfeitures are estimated based on estimated future
employee turnover and
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historical experience. Effective January 1, 2017, the Company adopted ASU 2016-09 and elected to recognize forfeitures when they occur using
a modified retrospective approach. The fair value for the Company s employee stock options was estimated at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes valuation model with the following average assumptions:

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2017
Expected term (years) 5.9
Expected volatility 56.5%
Risk-free interest rate 2.2%

Dividend rate

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the total unamortized compensation expense related to stock option awards granted to employees
and directors was $2,138,000 and $2,979,000, which is expected to be amortized over the next 1.24 and 1.45 years, respectively.
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The fair value of the shares to be issued under the Company s ESPP was estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model with the following
assumptions:

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2017
Expected term (years) 0.5
Expected volatility 89.2%
Risk-free interest rate 0.63%

Dividend rate

The Company s RSUs vest annually over four years in equal increments. A summary of all RSU activity for the three months ended March 31,
2018 is presented below:

Weighted Average Weighted Average Aggregate
Number of Grant Date Remaining Intrinsic Value
Shares Fair Value Contractual Term (in thousands)

Awards outstanding at December 31, 2017 5,089 $ 237.78 287 $ 37
Awarded $
Released (1,166) $ 225.52
Forfeited (466) $ 204.09
Awards outstanding at March 31, 2018 3,457 $ 246.45 2.61 $ 5

As of March 31, 2018, total unamortized stock-based compensation expense related to unvested RSUs was $1,759,000, with a weighted-average
remaining recognition period of 2.24 years.

10. Restructuring Charges and Expenses

In April 2017, the Company undertook an organizational realignment which included a reduction in force, lowering its total
headcount by approximately 33% compared to December 31, 2016, in order to conserve resources. Accordingly, the
Company recorded a restructuring charge of approximately $519,000, relating to severance related costs at that time.
As of December 31, 2017, all of the severance costs related to the April 2017 termination of 44 employees had been
paid.

In September 2017, the Company effected a cost reduction plan, which included a company-wide reduction in force, lowering its
total headcount by 24 employees. The Company recorded a restructuring charge of approximately $416,000, relating
to severance costs at that time. In October 2017, the Company subleased one of its facilities and ceased to use the
facility as part of the cost reduction plan. The Company recorded a restructuring charge of approximately $388,000
relating to the cost to exit the facility. As of December 31, 2017, all of the severance costs related to the termination
of 24 employees had been paid. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, $160,000 and $98,000, respectively,
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of the total costs to exit the facility was included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with the unaudited financial
statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This discussion and other parts of this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements of our plans, objectives,
expectations and intentions, that are based on the beliefs of our management, as well as assumptions made by, and information currently
available to, our management. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that
could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in the section of this Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q entitled Risk Factors.

Overview

We are a commercial-stage medical device company that designs, manufactures and sells image-guided, catheter-based systems that are used by
physicians to treat patients with peripheral artery disease, or PAD. Patients with PAD have a build-up of plaque in the arteries that supply blood
to areas away from the heart, particularly the pelvis and legs. Our mission is to significantly improve the treatment of vascular disease through
the introduction of products based on our Lumivascular platform, the only intravascular image-guided system available in this market. We
manufacture and sell a suite of products in the United States and select international markets. Our current products include our Lightbox imaging
console, the Ocelot family of catheters, which are designed to allow physicians to penetrate a total blockage in an artery, known as a chronic
total occlusion, or CTO, and Pantheris, our image-guided atherectomy device which is designed to allow physicians to precisely remove arterial
plaque in PAD patients. We received 510(k) clearance from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, for commercialization of Pantheris
in October 2015. We received an additional 510(k) clearance for an enhanced version of Pantheris in March 2016 and commenced sales of
Pantheris in the United States and select European countries promptly thereafter. We also offer the Wildcat and Kittycat 2 catheters, which are
used for crossing CTOs but do not contain on-board imaging technology.

During the first quarter of 2015, we completed enrollment of patients in VISION, a clinical trial designed to support our August 2015

510(k) filing with the FDA for our Pantheris atherectomy device. VISION was designed to evaluate the safety and efficacy of Pantheris to
perform atherectomy using intravascular imaging and successfully achieved all primary and secondary safety and efficacy endpoints. We believe
the data from VISION allows us to demonstrate that avoiding damage to healthy arterial structures, and in particular disruption of the external
elastic lamina, which is the membrane between the outermost layers of the artery, reduces the likelihood of restenosis, or re-narrowing, of the
diseased artery. Although the original VISION study protocol was not designed to follow patients beyond six months, we have worked with 18
of the VISION sites to re-solicit consent from previous clinical trial patients in order for them to evaluate patient outcomes through 12 and 24
months following initial treatment. Data collection for the remaining patients from participating sites was completed in May 2017, and we
released the final 12 and 24-month results for a total of 89 patients in July 2017. We commenced commercialization of Pantheris as part of our
Lumivascular platform in the United States and in select international markets in March 2016, after obtaining the required marketing
authorizations. During the fourth quarter of 2017, we began enrolling patients in INSIGHT, a clinical trial designed to support a filing with the
FDA to expand the indication for our Pantheris atherectomy device to include instent restenosis.

We focus our direct sales force, marketing efforts and promotional activities on interventional cardiologists, vascular surgeons and interventional
radiologists. We also work on developing strong relationships with physicians and hospitals that we have identified as key opinion leaders.
Although our sales and marketing efforts are directed at these physicians because they are the primary users of our technology, we consider the
hospitals and medical centers where the procedure is performed to be our customers, as they typically are responsible for purchasing our
products. We are designing future products to be compatible with our Lumivascular platform, which we expect to enhance the value proposition
for hospitals to invest in our technology. Pantheris qualifies for existing reimbursement codes currently utilized by other atherectomy products,
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further facilitating adoption of our products.

Prior to the introduction of our Lumivascular platform our non-imaging catheter products were manufactured by third parties. All of our
products are now manufactured in-house at our facilities in Redwood City, California using components and sub-assemblies
manufactured both in-house and by outside vendors. We assemble all of our products at our manufacturing facility,
but certain critical processes such as coating and sterilization are done by outside vendors. We expect our current
manufacturing facility will be sufficient through at least 2019.

In addition to commercialization of Pantheris in the United States and select international markets in March 2016, we began commercializing
our initial non-Lumivascular platform products in 2009 and introduced our Lumivascular platform products in the United States in late 2012.

We generated revenues of $1.8 million and $3.5 million in the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. During the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, our net loss was $10.7 million and

$15.3 million, respectively. We have not been profitable since inception, and as of March 31, 2018, our accumulated
deficit was $311.6 million.
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Since inception, we have financed our operations primarily through private placements of our preferred securities and, to a lesser extent, debt
financing arrangements. In January 2015, we completed an initial public offering, or IPO, of 5.0 million shares. As a result of our IPO, which
closed in February 2015, we received net proceeds of approximately $56.9 million, after underwriting discounts and commissions of
approximately $4.5 million and other expenses associated with our IPO of approximately $3.6 million.

In September 2015, we entered into a Term Loan Agreement, or Loan Agreement, with CRG Partners III L.P. and certain of
its affiliated funds, collectively CRG, under which we were able to borrow up to $50.0 million on or before March 29,
2017, subject to certain terms and conditions. We borrowed $30.0 million on September 22, 2015 and an additional
$10.0 million on June 15, 2016 under the Loan Agreement. Contingent on achievement of certain revenue milestones,
among other conditions, we would have been eligible to borrow an additional $10.0 million, on or prior to March 29,
2017; however, we did not achieve the level of revenues required to borrow the final $10.0 million.
Contemporaneously with the execution of the Loan Agreement, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with
CRG, pursuant to which CRG purchased 8,705 shares of our common stock on September 22, 2015 at a price of
$559.64 per share, which represents the 10-day average of closing prices of our common stock ending on

September 21, 2015. Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, we filed a registration statement covering the
resale of the shares sold to CRG and must comply with certain affirmative covenants during the time that such
registration statement remains in effect. We used the proceeds from the CRG borrowing and securities purchase to
retire our outstanding principal and accrued interest with PDL Biopharma, or PDL, and to retire the principal and
accrued interest underlying our outstanding promissory notes, or the notes.

On February 3, 2016, we filed a universal shelf registration statement to offer up to $150.0 million of our securities and entered into an
at-the-market program pursuant to a Sales Agreement with Cowen and Company, or Cowen, through which we may, from time to time, issue
and sell shares of common stock having an aggregate offering value of up to $50.0 million. The shelf registration statement also covers the
resale of the shares sold to CRG. The registration statement was declared effective by the SEC on March 8, 2016. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, we sold 27,374 shares of common stock through the at-the-market program at an average price of $194.74 and raised net
proceeds of $5.2 million, after payment of $0.2 million in commissions and fees to Cowen. During the three months ended March 31, 2018 and

2017, we sold no shares of common stock through the at-the-market program. Due to the SEC s baby shelf rules, which prohibit
companies with a public float of less than $75 million from issuing securities under a shelf registration statement in
excess of one-third of such company s public float in a twelve-month period, at this time we are unable to issue more
shares through our at-the-market program. In addition, in August 2016 we completed a follow-on public offering of
246,445 shares of our common stock for net proceeds of approximately $31.5 million after deducting underwriting
discounts and commissions of approximately $2.4 million and other expenses of approximately $0.6 million. The
246,445 shares include the exercise in full by the underwriters of their option to purchase an additional 32,145 shares

of our common stock.

In April 2017, we undertook an organizational realignment which included a reduction in force, that lowered our total headcount by
approximately 33% compared to December 31, 2016. The organizational realignment was designed to focus our
commercial efforts on driving catheter utilization in our strongest markets, around our most productive sales
professionals. Our field sales personnel headcount was reduced to 32, down from 60 as of December 31, 2016. This
workforce reduction was designed to reduce operating expenses while continuing to support major product
development and clinical initiatives. The strategic reduction in the field sales force was designed to maintain robust
engagement with higher volume users of our Lumivascular technology and position us to increase utilization of our
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catheters within our installed base of accounts in 2018 following the launch of our next generation products. In
September 2017, we effected a cost reduction plan, which also included a company-wide reduction in force, lowering
our total headcount by an additional 24 employees. Our field sales personnel headcount was further reduced to a total
of 20 people. In addition, as part of the cost reduction plan, in October 2017, we subleased a portion of the Company s
facilities and consolidated our operations primarily into one building.

On November 3, 2017, we entered the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which Lincoln Park is obligated to purchase,
at our request, up to $15.0 million of our common stock over a 30-month period, subject to certain limitations set forth
in the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement. As a fee for Lincoln Park s commitment to purchase such shares, we issued
23,584 shares of common stock to Lincoln Park on November 3, 2017. As obligated under a registration rights
agreement entered into with Lincoln Park in connection with the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement, we filed a
registration statement on Form S-1 on November 6, 2017 for up to 248,750 of such shares, which registration
statement was declared effective by the SEC on November 17, 2017.

On February 14, 2018, we entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Term Loan Agreement (the Amendment No. 2 Loan Agreement ) with CRG.
Under its terms, the Amendment No. 2 Loan Agreement, among other things: (1) extended the interest-only period through June 30, 2021;

(2) extended the period during which the Company may elect to pay a portion of interest in payment-in-kind, or PIK, interest payments through
June 30, 2021, so long as no default has occurred and is continuing; (3) permitted the Company to make its entire interest payments in PIK
interest payments for through December 31, 2019, so long as no default has occurred and is continuing; (4) extended the maturity date to

June 30, 2023; (5) reduced the minimum liquidity requirement to $3.5 million at all times; (6) eliminated the minimum revenue covenant for
2018 and 2019; (7) reduced the minimum revenue covenant to $15 million for 2020, $20 million for 2021 and $25 million for 2022; and

(8) provided CRG with board observer rights.
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In addition, on February 14, 2018, we entered into a Series A preferred stock Purchase Agreement (the Series A Purchase Agreement ) with
CRG, pursuant to which it agreed to convert $38.0 million of the outstanding principal amount of its senior secured term loan (plus $3.8 million
in back-end fees and prepayment premium applicable thereto), totaling $41.8 million, into a newly authorized Series A preferred stock. The
Series A preferred stock is initially convertible into 20,900,000 shares of common stock subject to certain limitations contained in the Series A
Purchase Agreement. The holders of Series A preferred stock are entitled to receive annual accruing dividends at a rate of 8%, payable in
additional shares of Series A preferred stock or cash, at our option. The shares of Series A preferred stock have no voting rights and rank senior
to all other classes and series of the Company s equity in terms of repayment and certain other rights. The Series A preferred stock and any of
the Company s common stock issued upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock is subject to a lockup agreement through February 14,
2019.

On February 16, 2018, we completed a public offering of 17,979 shares of Series B preferred stock and warrants to purchase 17,979,000 shares

of common stock. As a result, we received net proceeds of approximately $16.0 million after underwriting discounts, commissions, legal and
accounting fees of approximately $1.9 million. Each share of Series B preferred stock is accompanied by one warrant that expires on the

seventh anniversary of the date of issuance to purchase up to 500 shares of common stock (the Series 1 warrants ) and one warrant that expires on
the earlier of (i) the seventh anniversary of the date of issuance or (ii) the 60th calendar day following the receipt and announcement of FDA
clearance of our Pantheris below-the-knee device (or the same or similar product with a different name) to purchase up to 500 shares of common
stock; provided, however, if at any time during such 60-day period the volume weighted average price for any trading day is less than the then
effective exercise price, the termination date shall be extended to the seven year anniversary of the initial exercise date (the Series 2 warrants ).

We are developing two next-generation versions of our Pantheris atherectomy device, Pantheris 3.0 and a lower profile Pantheris (Pantheris 6F),
that we believe represent significant improvements over our existing product. Pantheris 3.0 includes new features and design improvements to
the handle, shaft, balloon and nose cone that we believe will improve usability and reliability, while the Pantheris 6F has a smaller diameter and
longer length that we believe will optimize it for use in smaller vessels and below-the-knee applications. We filed a 510(k) submission for
Pantheris 3.0 in December 2017 and we plan to file a 510(k) submission for Pantheris 6F in mid- 2018. We received a CE Mark for Pantheris
3.0 in December 2017.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and assumptions for the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities. Our estimates are based on our historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions and any such differences
may be material. There have been no significant and material changes in our critical accounting policies during the three months ended

March 31, 2018, as compared to those disclosed in Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations -
Critical accounting policies and significant judgments and estimates in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed with the SEC on
March 30, 2018.

Components of Our Results of Operations

Revenues
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All of our revenues are currently derived from sales of our Lightbox console and sales of our various PAD catheters, as well as related services
in the United States and select international markets. We expect our revenues in the near term to be adversely affected by the product
performance issues we have experienced with the current version of Pantheris as well as our strategic decision to
reduce the size of our sales force in April 2017 and September 2017. However, we expect our revenues to increase in
2018 as we introduce two next-generation versions of Pantheris. No single customer accounted for more than 10% of
our revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.

Revenues may fluctuate from quarter to quarter due to a variety of factors including capital equipment purchasing patterns that are
typically increased towards the end of the calendar year and decreased in the first quarter. In addition, during the first
quarter, our results can be harmed by adverse weather and by resetting of annual patient healthcare insurance plan
deductibles, both of which may cause patients to delay elective procedures. In the first quarter, the number of elective
procedures nationwide is historically lower than other quarters throughout the year, which we believe is primarily
attributable to the summer vacations of physicians and their patients.
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Cost of Revenues and Gross Margin

Cost of revenues consists primarily of costs related to manufacturing overhead, materials and direct labor. We expense all warranty costs
and inventory provisions as cost of revenues. We periodically write-down inventory for estimated excess, obsolete and
non-sellable inventories based on assumptions about future demand, past usage, changes to manufacturing processes
and overall market conditions. A significant portion of our cost of revenues currently consists of manufacturing
overhead costs. These overhead costs include the cost of quality assurance, material procurement, inventory control,
facilities, equipment and operations supervision and management. We expect overhead costs as a percentage of
revenues to become less significant as our production volume increases following the commercial launch of our
next-generation Pantheris catheters in 2018. Cost of revenues also includes depreciation expense for production
equipment, depreciation and related maintenance expense for placed Lightboxes held by customers and certain direct
costs such as those incurred for shipping our products.

We calculate gross margin as gross profit divided by revenues. Our gross margin has been and will continue to be affected by a variety of
factors, primarily production volumes, manufacturing costs, product yields, headcount, charges for excess and obsolete inventories and
cost-reduction strategies. We expect our gross margin to increase over the long term as our production volume increases and as we spread the
fixed portion of our manufacturing overhead costs over a larger number of units produced, thereby reducing our per unit manufacturing costs.
We intend to use our design, engineering and manufacturing capabilities to further advance and improve the efficiency of our manufacturing
processes, which we believe will reduce costs and increase our gross margin. In the future, we may seek to manufacture certain of our products
outside the United States to further reduce costs. Our gross margin will likely fluctuate from quarter to quarter as we continue to introduce new
products and sales channels, and as we adopt new manufacturing processes and technologies.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development, or R&D, expenses consist primarily of engineering, product development, clinical and regulatory affairs, consulting
services, materials, depreciation and other costs associated with products and technologies in development. These expenses include employee
compensation, including stock-based compensation, supplies, materials, quality assurance expenses allocated to R&D programs, consulting,
related travel expenses and facilities expenses. Clinical expenses include clinical trial design, clinical site reimbursement, data management,
travel expenses and the cost of manufacturing products for clinical trials. We expect R&D expenses as a percentage of revenues to vary over
time depending on the level and timing of our new product development efforts, as well as our clinical development, clinical trial and other
related activities.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, expenses consist primarily of compensation for personnel, including stock-based compensation,
related to selling and marketing functions, physician education programs, business development, finance, information technology and human
resource functions. Other SG&A expenses include commissions, training, travel expenses, educational and promotional activities, marketing
initiatives, market research and analysis, conferences and trade shows, professional services fees, including legal, audit and tax fees, insurance
costs, general corporate expenses and allocated facilities-related expenses. We expect SG&A expenses to remain lower in the near term
compared to recent prior years due to our reductions in force in April and September 2017.

Interest Income (Expense), net

Interest income (expense), net consists primarily of interest incurred on our outstanding indebtedness and non-cash interest related to the
amortization of debt discount and issuance costs associated with our various debt agreements.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net primarily consists of gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of foreign exchange transactions.

Results of Operations:

Results of Operations:

Three Months Ended March 31,
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2018 2017
(in thousands, except percentages)

Revenues 1,809 $ 3,491
Cost of revenues 1,415 4,075
Gross profit (loss) 394 (584)
Gross margin 22% -17%
Operating expenses:
Research and development 1,777 3,923
Selling, general and administrative 4,260 9,318
Total operating expenses 6,037 13,241
Loss from operations (5,643) (13,825)
Interest income (expense), net (4,639) (1,518)
Other income (expense), net 1 3
Net loss and comprehensive loss (10,281) $ (15,340)

This report corrects an error in our earnings press release dated on May 14, 2018 with respect to the net loss and net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders for the first quarter ended March 31, 2018. The earnings press release presented net loss attributable to common
stockholders of $10.7 million and net loss per share attributable to common stockholders of $5.37 for the first quarter ended March 31, 2018.

The correct amounts presented in this report reflect net loss attributable to common stockholders of $15.9 million and basic and diluted net loss
per share attributable to common stockholders of $7.99 for the first quarter ended March 31, 2018. The changes in these numbers are a result of
arecalculation of the deemed dividend amount allocated to the holders of preferred stock. The error did not impact any of the other amounts in
the unaudited financial statements reported in the earnings press release.

Comparison of Three Months Ended March 31, 2018 and 2017

Revenues. Revenues decreased $1.7 million, or 48%, to $1.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2018,
compared to $3.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017. For the three months ended March 31, 2018,
revenues related to sales of our disposable catheters decreased by 48% to $1.45 million while revenues related to our

Lightbox imaging consoles decreased by 50% to $0.3 million. The decreased revenues in the three months ended
March 31, 2018 reflect the impact of continued product performance issues with the current version of Pantheris and
the reduced size of our field sales force, as well as a strategic decision we made in 2017 to realign the focus of our
sales force on driving the utilization at our current installed base rather than on building the installed base of Lightbox

imaging consoles.
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Cost of Revenues and Gross Margin. Cost of revenues decreased $2.7 million, or 65%, to $1.4 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2018, compared to $4.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017. This
decrease was primarily attributable to $80,000 in charges for excess and obsolescence in the three months ended
March 31, 2018, compared to $1.2 million in the three months ended March 31, 2017. Gross margin for the three
months ended March 31, 2018 increased to 22%, compared to (17%) in the three months ended March 31, 2017. The
increase in gross margin was primarily due to the decreased charges for inventory excess and obsolescence and
decrease of warranty expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to the prior year period.

Research and Development Expenses. R&D expenses decreased $2.1 million, or 55%, to $1.8 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2018, compared to $3.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017. This
decrease was primarily due to a $1.4 million decrease in personnel-related expenses, a decrease of $0.2 million in
product development materials and related costs, a decrease of $0.2 million in outside services, and a decrease of $0.3
million relating to the allocation of facilities expense Personnel-related expenses included stock-based compensation
expense of $0.1 million compared to $0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&A expenses decreased $5.1 million, or 54%, to $4.2 million during the
three months ended March 31, 2018, compared to $9.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017. This
decrease was primarily due to a $3.9 million decrease in personnel-related expenses, a decrease of $0.3 million in
marketing costs, a decrease of $0.7 million in outside services and decrease of $0.2 million relating to the allocation of
facilities expense. Personnel-related expenses decreased due to a decrease in headcount and stock-based compensation
expense as a result of our organizational realignment in 2017. Personnel-related expenses included stock-based
compensation expense of $0.5 million compared to $0.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017
respectively.

Interest Income (Expense), Net. Interest income (expense), net increased $3.1 million, or 206%, to an expense of $4.6
million during the three months ended March 31, 2018, compared to an expense of $1.5 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2017. During the three months ended March 31,2018 the Company incurred $3.8 million in
fees relating to the conversion of $38.0 million of principal under the CRG Loan Agreement.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income, net decreased $2,000 to an income of $1,000, during the three months ended
March 31, 2018, compared to income of $3,000 during the three months ended March 31, 2017. Other income for the
three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, was primarily attributable to the remeasurement of foreign exchange
transactions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
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As of March 31, 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents of $14.4 million and an accumulated deficit of $311.6 million, compared to cash
and cash equivalents of $5.4 million and an accumulated deficit of $301.3 million as of December 31, 2017. We
believe that the net proceeds we received from our Series B Offering on February 16, 2018, net proceeds from the
sale of our common stock to Lincoln Park pursuant to the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement entered into on
November 3, 2017, together with our cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2017, and expected revenues from
operations, will be sufficient to satisfy our capital requirements and fund our operations for through at least

October 31, 2018. We will need to raise additional funds through future equity or debt financings within the next
seven months to meet our operational needs and capital requirements for product development, clinical trials and
commercialization. We can provide no assurance that we will be successful in raising funds pursuant to additional
equity or debt financings or that such funds will be raised at prices that do not create substantial dilution for our
existing stockholders. Given the recent decline in our stock price, any financing that we undertake in the foreseeable
future could cause substantial dilution to our existing stockholders. Additional debt financing, if available, may
involve covenants restricting our operations or our ability to incur additional debt. Any additional debt financing or
additional equity that we raise may contain terms that are not favorable to us or our stockholders and require
significant debt service payments, which divert resources from other activities. Additional financing may not be
available at all, or if available, may not be in amounts or on terms acceptable to us. If we are unable to obtain
additional financing, we may be required to delay the development, commercialization and marketing of our products
and we may be required to significantly scale back our business and operations.

To date, our primary sources of capital have been private placements of preferred stock, debt financing agreements, our at-the-market program,
our IPO and our follow-on public offerings. As previously disclosed, on April 20, May 24, and October 24, 2017 we received letters from the
Listing Qualifications Department of The Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC ( Nasdaq ) notifying us that we were not in compliance with applicable

listing rules. On March 1, 2018, Nasdaq informed us that we had regained compliance with the applicable requirements
for listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market. For more information on this risk, see Part I, Item 1A Risk Factors.
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In September 2015, we entered into a Loan Agreement with CRG, under which we could borrow up to $50.0 million, of which $30.0 million
was immediately available and borrowed by us. Of the remaining $20.0 million, we borrowed $10.0 million on June 15, 2016 and the
availability of the remaining $10.0 million was contingent on the achievement of certain net revenue milestones prior to December 31, 2016,
which were not achieved. Under the original terms of the Loan Agreement, the first sixteen quarterly payments are interest-only payments, and
the last eight quarterly payments will be equal installments in which interest and principal amounts are paid. Interest is calculated at a fixed rate
of 12.5% per annum. We make quarterly payments of interest only in arrears commencing on September 30, 2015. During the interest-only
period, we may elect to make the 12.5% interest payment by making a cash payment for 8.5% per annum of interest and making a
payment-in-kind, or PIK, for the remaining amount, for which the 4.0% per annum of interest would be added to the outstanding principal
amount of the loan. To date, we have elected the PIK option to the extent available and have made a cash payment for the remaining amount.
Principal is repayable in eight equal quarterly installments during the final two years of the term. Under the original terms of the Loan
Agreement, all unpaid principal, and accrued and unpaid interest, is due and payable in full on September 30, 2021. As of March 31, 2018, we
had $7.5 million outstanding under the Loan Agreement. For more information, see Part I, Item 2  Contractual Obligations.
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We may voluntarily prepay the loan in full, with a prepayment premium beginning at 5% and declining by 1% annually thereafter, with no
premium being payable if prepayment occurs after the fifth year of the loan. Each tranche of borrowing requires the payment, on the borrowing
date, of a financing fee equal to 1.5% of the principal amount borrowed. In addition, a facility fee equal to 7.0% of loan principal borrowed plus
any PIK is payable at the end of the term or when the loan is repaid in full. The term loan is collateralized by a security interest in substantially
all of our assets. We used the proceeds from the CRG borrowing and securities purchase to retire our outstanding debt with PDL and to retire
the principal and accrued interest underlying our outstanding notes, which are described below.

The Loan Agreement requires that we adhere to certain affirmative and negative covenants, including financial reporting requirements, certain
minimum financial covenants for pre-specified liquidity and revenue requirements and a prohibition against the incurrence of indebtedness, or
creation of additional liens, other than as specifically permitted by the terms of the Loan Agreement. In particular, the covenants of the Loan
Agreement, as amended as of December 31, 2017, include a covenant that we maintain a minimum of $5.0 million of cash and certain cash
equivalents. On December 14, 2017, we entered into a waiver and consent agreement (the Waiver and Consent ) with CRG. The Waiver and
Consent provided for the waiver of the minimum required revenue financial covenant for the twelve-month period beginning January 1, 2017, as
required under the terms of the Loan Agreement. Pursuant to the Waiver and Consent, CRG also consented to our payment of the cash interest
payment due on December 31, 2017 in the form of a PIK loan instead. On January 24, 2018, we entered into a waiver agreement (the Waiver )
with CRG. The Waiver provided for the waiver of the $5,000,0000 minimum liquidity financial covenant and reduced it to $2,500,000 for the
period beginning January 1, 2018 through February 28, 2018, as required under the terms of the Loan Agreement and waived any event of
default resulting from non-compliance with the $5,000,000 minimum liquidity financial covenant.

On February 14, 2018, we entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Term Loan Agreement (the Amendment No. 2 Loan Agreement ) with CRG.
Under its terms, the Amendment No. 2 Loan Agreement, among other things: (1) extended the interest-only period through June 30, 2021;

(2) extended the period during which the Company may elect to pay a portion of interest in PIK interest payments through June 30, 2021 so long
as no default has occurred and is continuing; (3) permitted the Company to make its entire interest payments in PIK interest payments for
through December 31, 2019 so long as no default has occurred and is continuing; (4) extended the maturity date to June 30, 2023; (5) reduced
the minimum liquidity requirement to $3.5 million at all times; (6) eliminated the minimum revenue covenant for 2018 and 2019; (7) reduced

the minimum revenue covenant to $15 million for 2020, $20 million for 2021 and $25 million for 2022; and (8) provided CRG
with board observer rights. If we fail to meet the applicable minimum revenue target in any calendar year, the Loan
Agreement provides a cure right if we prepay a portion of the outstanding principal equal to 2.0 times the revenue
shortfall. In addition, the Loan Agreement prohibits the payment of cash dividends on our capital stock and also
places restrictions on mergers, sales of assets, investments, incurrence of liens, incurrence of indebtedness and
transactions with affiliates. CRG may accelerate the payment terms of the Loan Agreement upon the occurrence of
certain events of default set forth therein, which include our failure to make timely payments of amounts due under
the Loan Agreement, the failure to adhere to the covenants set forth in the Loan Agreement, our insolvency or upon
the occurrence of a material adverse change. We are currently in compliance with the covenants under the Loan
Agreement, but if we default on any such covenants we will need, and may not be able to obtain, relief in the form of
waivers or amendments to the applicable debt agreement.

In addition, on February 14, 2018, we entered into the Series A Purchase Agreement with CRG, pursuant to which it agreed to convert $38.0
million of the outstanding principal amount of its senior secured term loan (plus the back-end fee and prepayment premium applicable thereto)
under the Loan Agreement into a newly authorized Series A preferred stock. Under the terms of the Series A Purchase Agreement, the holders
of Series A preferred stock are entitled to receive annual accruing dividends at a rate of 8%, payable in additional shares of Series A preferred
stock or cash, at our option. The shares of Series A preferred stock have no voting rights and rank senior to all other classes and series of the
Company s equity in terms of repayment and certain other rights. The Series A preferred stock and any of the Company s common stock issued
upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock is subject to a lockup agreement through February 14, 2019.
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On February 3, 2016, we filed a universal shelf registration statement to offer up to $150.0 million of our securities and entered into an
at-the-market program pursuant to a Sales Agreement with Cowen, as sales agent, through which we issued and sold
common stock with an aggregate value of approximately $8.7 million between the registration statement s
effectiveness on March 8, 2016 and September 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2016, we sold 27,374
shares of common stock through the at-the-market program at an average price of $194.74 and raised net proceeds of
$5.2 million, after payment of $0.2 million in commissions and fees to Cowen. During the three months ended
March 31, 2018 and 2017, we sold no shares of common stock through the at-the-market program. Due to the SEC s
baby shelf rules, which prohibit companies with a public float of less than $75 million from issuing securities under a
shelf registration statement in excess of one-third of such company s public float in a twelve-month period, we are
unable to issue more shares through our at-the-market program at this time. In addition, in August 2016, we issued
and sold 246,445 shares of our common stock in a follow-on public offering at a public offering price of $140.00 per
share, for net proceeds of approximately $31.5 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of
approximately $2.4 million and other expenses of approximately $0.6 million. The 246,445 shares include the exercise
in full by the underwriters of their option to purchase an additional 32,145 shares of our common stock.
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On November 3, 2017, we entered into the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement pursuant to which Lincoln Park is obligated to purchase, at our
request, up to $15.0 million of our common stock over a 30-month period, subject to certain limitations set forth in the purchase agreement. As a
fee for Lincoln Park s commitment to purchase such shares, we issued 943,396 shares of common stock to Lincoln Park on November 3, 2017.
As obligated under a registration rights agreement entered into with Lincoln Park in connection with the Purchase Agreement, we filed a
registration statement on Form S-1 on November 6, 2017 for up to 248,750 of such shares, which registration statement was declared effective
by the SEC on November 17, 2017.

On February 16, 2018, we completed a public offering of 17,979 shares of Series B preferred stock and warrants to purchase 17,979,000 shares
of common stock. As a result, we received net proceeds of approximately $16.0 million after underwriting discounts, commissions, legal and
accounting fees of approximately $1.9 million. The Series B preferred stock has a liquidation preference of $0.001 per share, full ratchet price
based anti-dilution protection, has no voting rights and is subject to certain ownership limitations. The Series B preferred stock is immediately
convertible at the option of the holder, has no stated maturity, and does not pay regularly stated dividends or interest. Each share of Series B
preferred stock is accompanied by one Series 1 warrant that expires on the seventh anniversary of the date of issuance to purchase up to 500
shares of common stock and one Series 2 warrant that expires on the earlier of (i) the seventh anniversary of the date of issuance or (ii) the 60th
calendar day following the receipt and announcement of FDA clearance of our Pantheris below-the-knee device (or the same or similar product
with a different name) to purchase up to 500 shares of common stock; provided, however, if at any time during such 60-day period the volume
weighted average price for any trading day is less than the then effective exercise price, the termination date shall be extended to the seven year
anniversary of the initial exercise date.

Cash Flows

Three Months Ended March 31,
2018 2017
(in thousands)
Net cash (used in) provided by:

Operating activities $ (6,877) $ (13,263)
Investing activities 46 29)
Financing activities 15,860 230
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 9,029 $ (13,062)

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2018 was $6.9 million, consisting primarily of a net loss of $10.3
million and a decrease in net operating assets of $2.0 million, offset by non-cash charges of $5.4 million. The decrease in net operating assets
was due to a decrease in other liabilities related to the payment of litigation settlement expense, assigned interest to PDL, partially offset by an
increase in inventories, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, due to timing of payments. The non-cash charges primarily consisted of
depreciation, stock-based compensation, non-cash interest expense and other charges related to our credit agreement with CRG, and an increased
reserve for excess and obsolescence in inventories.

Net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was $13.3 million, consisting primarily of a net loss of $15.3
million and an increase in net operating assets of $1.9 million, offset by non-cash charges of $3.9 million. The increase in net operating assets
was due to an increase in inventories, prepaid expenses and other current assets, decreases in accounts payable, due to timing of payments,

decreases in other liabilities related to the repayment of assigned interest to PDL and a decrease in accrued compensation, partially offset by a
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decrease in accounts receivable. The non-cash charges primarily consisted of depreciation, stock-based compensation, non-cash interest expense
and other charges related to our credit agreement with CRG, and an increased reserve for excess and obsolescence in inventories.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities in the three months ended March 31, 2018 was $0.3 million consisting of purchases of property and
equipment.
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Net cash used in investing activities in the three months ended March 31, 2017 was $29,000 consisting of purchases of property and equipment.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities in the three months ended March 31, 2018 of $15.9 million primarily relates to proceeds from
purchases under our financing activities.

Net cash provided by financing activities in the three months ended March 31, 2017 of $0.2 million primarily relates to proceeds from purchases
under our employee stock purchase plan.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently have no off-balance sheet arrangements and we currently do not use any structured finance, special purpose entities, or variable
interest entities.

Contractual Obligations

Our principal obligations consist of the operating lease for our facilities, capital leases related to office equipment, our remaining royalty
obligations with PDL, our Loan Agreement with CRG and non-cancellable purchase commitments.

There have been no other material changes to our contractual obligations from those described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed with
the SEC on March 30, 2018.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The risk associated with fluctuating interest rates is primarily limited to our cash equivalents, which are carried at quoted market prices. Due to
the short-term maturities and low risk profile of our cash equivalents, an immediate 100 basis point change in interest rates would not have a
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material effect on the fair value of our cash equivalents. We do not currently use or plan to use financial derivatives in our investment portfolio.

Credit Risk

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our cash and cash equivalents were maintained with one financial institution in the United States,
and our current deposits are likely in excess of insured limits. We have reviewed the financial statements of this institution and believe it has
sufficient assets and liquidity to conduct its operations in the ordinary course of business with little or no credit risk to us.

Our accounts receivable primarily relates to revenues from the sale of our Lumivascular platform products to hospitals and medical centers in
the United States. None of our customers represented more than 10% of our accounts receivable as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our business is primarily conducted in U.S. dollars. Any transactions that may be conducted in foreign currencies are not expected to have a
material effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. Based on our foreign currency balances of monetary assets and
liabilities, we estimate that a 10% adverse change in Euro exchange rates versus the U.S. dollar would not have a material effect on the fair value
of our monetary assets.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

‘We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and the rules and regulations thereunder, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules and forms and that such
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information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible
controls and procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of March 31, 2018. Based on such evaluation,
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of March 31, 2018, our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting identified in management s evaluation pursuant to Rules 13a-15(d) and
15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the first quarter of 2018 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART IL OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Except as set forth below, as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we are not involved in any pending legal proceedings that we
believe could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. From time to time we may be
involved in legal proceedings or investigations, which could harm our reputation, business and financial condition and
divert the attention of our management from the operation of our business.

Between May 22, 2017 and May 25, 2017, three class actions were filed in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of San Mateo

( State Court ), against us and certain of our officers and directors. The underwriters of our IPO in January 2015 are also named as defendants.
The actions were captioned Grotewiel v. Avinger, Inc., et al., No. 17-CIV-02240, Gonzalez v. Avinger, Inc., et al., No. 17-CIV-02284, and
Olberding v. Avinger, Inc., et al., No. 17-CIV-02307. These lawsuits allege that the registration statement for our IPO made false and misleading
statements and omissions in violation of the Securities Act of 1933. Plaintiffs seek to represent a class of purchasers of our common stock in
and/or traceable to our IPO. Plaintiffs seek, among other things, unspecified compensatory damages, interest, costs, recission, and attorneys fees.
On June 12, 2017, defendants removed these actions to the United States District Court for the Northern District of California ( Federal Court ),
where they were captioned Grotewiel v. Avinger, Inc., No. 17-cv-03400, Gonzalez v. Avinger, Inc., No. 17-cv-03401, and Olberding v.

Avinger, Inc., No. 17-cv-03398, and where the actions were related and assigned to the same judge.

On June 22, 2017, and June 23, 2017, plaintiffs Olberding and Gonzalez moved to remand their cases to the State Court. Defendants opposed
these motions. On July 21, 2017, the Federal Court granted the motions to remand the Olberding and Gonzalez actions to the State Court. On
August 9, 2017, the State Court consolidated the Olberding and Gonzalez actions under the caption Gonzalez v. Avinger, Inc., et al.,

No. 17-CIV-02284 ( State Action ). On September 22, 2017, an amended complaint was filed in the State Action. On October 31, 2017, the

parties in the State Action stipulated to a stay of proceedings until judgment is entered in the federal Grotewiel action ( Federal Action ).

On October 11, 2017, the Federal Court appointed a lead plaintiff and approved the selection of a lead counsel in the Federal Action. An
amended complaint was filed in the Federal Action on November 21, 2017. In order to allow the parties to pursue mandatory alternative dispute
resolution, the parties have stipulated and the Federal Court ordered that defendants motion to dismiss the Federal Action will be due on
January 17, 2018, with a hearing set for May 1, 2018.

The Company and its directors believe that the foregoing lawsuits were entirely without merit however, in the interest of avoiding the cost and
disruption of continuing to defend against these lawsuits, on February 8, 2018 the Company participated in a mediation to explore whether a
settlement could be reached. While a settlement was not reached then, the parties continued discussions and they ultimately reached agreement.
On March 19, 2018, the Company entered into a binding memorandum of understanding to settle the securities class actions pending against the
Company and several of its officers and directors. The settlement is for a total of $5 million and, if approved by the court, will result in a full
release of claims against all defendants. The Company s total contribution to the settlement fund is $1.76 million. The settlement is subject to
final documentation, notice to class members, and approval of the court.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. We have identified the following risks and uncertainties that may
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and future growth prospects.
Our business could be harmed by any of these risks. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones
we face. If any of the risks actually occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and
prospects could be materially and adversely affected. The trading price of our common stock could decline due to any
of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment. In assessing these risks, you should also refer to the
other information contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including our financial statements and related
notes. Please also see Cautionary Notes Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.

Risks Related to Our Business

Our quarterly and annual results may fluctuate significantly, may not fully reflect the underlying performance of our business and may
result in decreases in the price of our common stock.

Our quarterly and annual results of operations, including our revenues, profitability and cash flow, may vary significantly in the future and
period-to-period comparisons of our operating results may not be meaningful. Accordingly, the results of any one quarter or period should not be
relied upon as an indication of future performance. Our quarterly and annual financial results may

33

64



Edgar Filing: Avinger Inc - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors, many of which are outside our control and, as a result, may not fully reflect the underlying
performance of our business. Fluctuation in quarterly and annual results may decrease the value of our common stock. Factors that may cause
fluctuations in our quarterly and annual results include, without limitation:

e our ability to obtain and maintain FDA clearance and approval from foreign regulatory authorities for our
products, and the timing of such clearances and approvals, particularly with respect to current and future generations
of Pantheris;

e market acceptance of our Lumivascular platform and products, including Pantheris;

e the availability of reimbursement for our Lumivascular platform products;

e our ability to attract new customers and increase the amount of business we generate from existing customers;

e results of our clinical trials;

e the timing and success of new product and feature introductions by us or our competitors or any other change in
the competitive dynamics of our industry, including consolidation among competitors, customers or strategic partners;

e the amount and timing of costs and expenses related to the maintenance and expansion of our business and
operations;

e changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;

e general economic, political, industry and market conditions, including economic and political uncertainty caused
by the recent U.S. presidential election;

e the regulatory environment;
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e the hiring, training and retention of key employees, including our sales team;

e the ability of our remaining sales and marketing personnel to maintain and increase our revenues after the
April organizational realignment and September 2017 cost reduction plan;

e the cost and potential outcomes of existing and future litigation, including, without limitation, the purported
stockholder class action described below under Risks Related to our Common Stock and Preferred Stock Our stock
price may be volatile, and purchasers of our common stock could incur substantial losses. ;

e our ability to obtain additional financing; and

e advances and trends in new technologies and industry standards.

We have a history of net losses and we may not be able to achieve or sustain profitability.

We have incurred significant losses in each period since our inception in 2007. We incurred net losses of $10.3 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2018, $48.7 million in 2017, $56.1 million in 2016 and $47.3 million in 2015. As of March 31, 2018, we had an accumulated
deficit of approximately $311.6 million. These losses and our accumulated deficit reflect the substantial investments we have made to develop
our Lumivascular platform and acquire customers.

We expect our losses to continue for the foreseeable future as we continue to make significant future expenditures to develop and expand our
business. In addition, as a public company, we will continue to incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses. Accordingly, we cannot
assure you that we will achieve profitability in the future or that, if we do become profitable, we will sustain profitability. Our failure to achieve
and sustain profitability would negatively impact the market price of our common stock.

We may not be able to secure additional financing on favorable terms, or at all, to meet our future capital needs and our failure to obtain
additional financing when needed could force us to delay, reduce or eliminate our product development programs and commercialization
efforts or cause us to become insolvent.

We believe that the net proceeds from the recently completed offering of our Series B preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, or Series B
preferred stock, together with our cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2018 and expected revenues from
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operations, will be sufficient to satisfy our capital requirements and fund our operations for at least the next seven
months. Even though we sold $18.0 million in Series B preferred stock and warrants under the terms of an
underwriting agreement, dated as of February 14, 2018, between us and Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. (the Series B
Purchase Agreement ), we will need to raise additional funds through future equity or debt financings within the next
seven months to meet our operational needs and capital requirements for product development, clinical trials and
commercialization and may subsequently require additional fundraising. We can provide no assurance that we will be
successful in raising funds pursuant to additional equity or debt financings or that such funds will be raised at prices
that do not create substantial dilution for our existing stockholders. Given the recent decline in our stock price, any
financing that we undertake in the next seven months could cause substantial dilution to our existing stockholders.

To date, we have financed our operations primarily through sales of our products and net proceeds from the issuance of our preferred stock and
debt financings, our at-the-market program, our initial public offering, or IPO, and our follow-on public offerings. The warrants issued pursuant
to the Series B Purchase Agreement entered into in connection with the Series B preferred stock follow-on in February 2018 (the Series B
Offering ) prohibit us from entering into certain transactions involving the issuance of securities for a price determined by reference to the trading
price of our common stock or otherwise subject to modification following the date of issuance, in each case for a period of three years from the
closing date of the Series B Offering (and excluding purchases pursuant to the Series B Purchase Agreement, which may be made on the 120

day anniversary of the closing date of the offering). This prohibition may be waived by holders of two-thirds of the outstanding Series 1 and
Series 2 warrants at any time. We do not know when or if our operations will generate sufficient cash to fund our ongoing operations. We

cannot be certain that additional capital will be available as needed on acceptable terms, or at all. In the future, we may require additional capital
in order to (i) continue to conduct research and development activities, (ii) conduct post-market clinical studies, as well as clinical trials to obtain
regulatory clearances and approvals necessary to commercialize our Lumivascular platform products, (iii) expand our sales and marketing
infrastructure and (iv) acquire complementary businesses technologies or products; or (v) respond to business opportunities, challenges, a

decline in sales, increased regulatory obligations or unforeseen circumstances. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors,
including:

o the degree of success we experience in commercializing our Lumivascular platform products, particularly
Pantheris, and any next-generation versions of such products;

e the costs, timing and outcomes of clinical trials and regulatory reviews associated with our future products;

e the costs and expenses of maintaining or expanding our sales and marketing infrastructure and our manufacturing
operations;

e the costs and timing of developing variations of our Lumivascular platform products, especially Pantheris and, if
necessary, obtaining FDA clearance of such variations;

e the extent to which our Lumivascular platform is adopted by hospitals for use by interventional cardiologists,
vascular surgeons and interventional radiologists in the treatment of PAD;
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e the number and types of future products we develop and commercialize;

e the costs of defending ourselves against existing and future litigation, including pending stockholder class action
claims;

e the costs of preparing, filing and prosecuting patent applications and maintaining, enforcing and defending
intellectual property-related claims; and

e the extent and scope of our general and administrative expenses.

We may raise additional funds in equity or debt financings or enter into credit facilities in order to access funds for our capital needs. Any debt
financing obtained by us in the future would cause us to incur additional debt service expenses and could include restrictive covenants relating to
our capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional capital and

pursue business opportunities. In addition, due to our current level of debt, future equity investors may require that we
convert all or a portion of our debt to equity, and our debtholders may not agree to such terms. If we raise additional
funds through further issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, and/or if we convert all or a portion of our
existing debt to equity, our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution in their percentage ownership of our
company, and any new equity securities we issue could have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of
holders of our common stock. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms satisfactory to us
when we require it, we may terminate or delay the development of one or more of our products, delay clinical trials
necessary to market our products, delay establishment of sales and marketing capabilities or other activities necessary
to commercialize our products, and significantly scale back our operations, or we may become insolvent. If this were
to occur, our ability to continue to grow and support our business and to respond to business challenges could be
significantly limited.
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We have a significant amount of debt, which may adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our financial position and
our ability to secure additional financing in the future.

As of March 31, 2018, we had $7.5 million in principal and interest outstanding under a Term Loan Agreement, or the Loan Agreement, with

CRG Partners III L.P. and certain of its affiliated funds (collectively CRG ). This amount reflects the completion of the
Series B Offering and CRG s conversion of $38 million in outstanding principal and interest into Series A preferred
stock (the CRG Conversion ). Our significant amount of debt may:

e make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the Loan Agreement;

e increase our vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry and competitive conditions;

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to make payments on our debt,
thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures and other general
corporate purposes;

limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;

restrict us from exploiting business opportunities;

make it more difficult to satisfy our financial obligations, including payments on the Loan Agreement

place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt obligations; and

e limit our ability to borrow additional funds for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service
requirements, execution of our business strategy or other general corporate purposes on satisfactory terms or at all.
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The existence of a substantial amount of debt may make it difficult for us to run our business effectively or raise the capital we need to continue
our operations.

Covenants under the Loan Agreement will restrict our business in many ways.

The Loan Agreement contains various covenants that limit, subject to certain exceptions, our ability to, among other things:

e incur or assume liens;

e incur additional debt or provide guarantees in respect of obligations of other persons;

e issue redeemable stock and preferred stock;

e pay dividends or make distributions on capital stock, repurchase, redeem or make payments on capital stock or
repay, repurchase, redeem, retire, defease, acquire or cancel debt prior to the stated maturity thereof;

e make loans, investments or acquisitions;

e create or permit restrictions on the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions to us or
to guarantee our debt, limit our or any of our subsidiaries ability to create liens, or make or pay intercompany loans or
advances;

e enter into certain transactions with affiliates;

e sell, transfer, license, lease or dispose of our or our subsidiaries assets, including the capital stock of our
subsidiaries; and

e dissolve, liquidate, consolidate or merge with or into, or sell substantially all the assets of us and our subsidiaries,
taken as a whole, to, another person.
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In particular, the Loan Agreement, as amended, includes a covenant that we maintain a minimum of $3.5 million of cash and certain cash
equivalents, and we had to achieve minimum revenue of $7.0 million in 2015 and $18.0 million in 2016, and will have to achieve minimum
revenue of $15.0 million in 2020, $20.0 million in 2021 and $25.0 million in 2022. If we fail to meet the applicable minimum revenue target in
any calendar year, the Loan Agreement provides a cure right if we prepay a portion of the outstanding principal equal to 2.0 times the revenue

shortfall. On December 14, 2017, we entered into a waiver agreement with CRG waiving compliance with the
minimum required revenue financial covenant for calendar year 2017. On January 24, 2018, we entered into another
waiver agreement with CRG for the waiver of the $5.0 million minimum liquidity financial covenant and reduced it to
$2.5 million for the period beginning January 1, 2018 through February 28, 2018, and waived any event of default
resulting from non-compliance with the $5.0 million minimum liquidity financial covenant. There can be no assurance
as to our future compliance with the covenants under the Loan Agreement, as amended.

The covenants contained in the Loan Agreement could adversely affect our ability to:

e finance our operations;

e make needed capital expenditures;

e make strategic acquisitions or investments or enter into alliances;

e withstand a future downturn in our business or the economy in general;

e refinance our outstanding indebtedness prior to maturity;

e engage in business activities, including future opportunities, that may be in our interest; and

e plan for or react to market conditions or otherwise execute our business strategies.

We are also subject to standard event of default provisions under the Loan Agreement that, if triggered, would allow the debt to be
accelerated, which could significantly deplete our cash resources, cause us to raise additional capital at unfavorable
terms, require us to sell portions of our business or result in us becoming insolvent. The existing collateral pledged
under the Loan Agreement may prevent us from being able to secure additional debt or equity financing on favorable
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terms, or at all, or to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions. If we default under any of these
debt covenants and are unable to cure the default within the relevant cure period, we would need relief from default or
else our creditors could exercise their remedies. There can be no assurance that our debtholders would accord any
relief from default. In addition, potential sources of equity financing may decline to invest in our company given the
amount of debt and the rights that debt holders have to get paid before equity holders. In order to facilitate equity
investments, future equity investors may require that we convert all or a portion of our debt to equity, and our
debtholders may not agree to such terms. The amount of debt could therefore affect our ability to finance our company
and prevent us from obtaining necessary operating capital as a result.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service our credit facility with CRG. If we fail to comply with the obligations under our
credit facility, the lender may be able to accelerate amounts owed under the facility and may foreclose upon the assets securing our
obligations.

Borrowings under our credit facility are secured by substantially all of our personal property, including our intellectual property. Our ability to
make scheduled payments or to refinance our debt obligations depends on numerous factors, including the amount of our cash reserves and our
actual and projected financial and operating performance. These amounts and our performance are subject to numerous risks, including the risks
in this section, some of which may be beyond our control. We cannot assure you that we will maintain a level of cash reserves or cash flows
from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal, premium, if any, and interest on our existing or future indebtedness. If our
cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures,
sell assets or operations, seek additional capital or restructure or refinance our indebtedness. We cannot assure you that we would be able to take
any of these actions, or that these actions would permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. In addition, in the event of our breach
of the Loan Agreement, we may be required to repay any outstanding amounts earlier than anticipated. If we fail to comply with our obligations
under the Loan Agreement, the lender would be able to accelerate the required repayment of amounts due and, if they are not repaid, could
foreclose upon our assets securing our obligations under the Loan Agreement.
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CRG has the right to acquire a significant percentage of our stock upon conversion of its Series A preferred stock and has the ability to exert
significant control over matters pursuant to the protective provisions therein as well as the covenants and other restrictions in the Loan
Agreement.

Even though Series A preferred stock is non-voting stock, and has beneficial ownership restrictions, the Series A Certificate of Designations has
protective provisions that will require CRG to consent to certain significant Company events. For example, CRG s consent would be necessary to
create additional shares of Series A preferred stock, amend our organizational documents, or approve any merger, sale of assets, or other major
corporate transaction. This consent requirement could delay or prevent any acquisition of our company on terms that other stockholders may
desire, and may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

The Series A preferred stock has a liquidation preference senior to our common stock and the Series B preferred stock.

Series A preferred stock has a liquidation preference that gets paid prior to any payment on our common stock (including shares issuable upon
the exercise of the Series 1 or Series 2 warrants) and Series B preferred stock. As a result, if we were to dissolve, liquidate, merge with another
company or sell our assets, the holders of our Series A preferred stock would have the right to receive up to approximately $41,800,000 from
any such transaction before any amount is paid to the holders of our Series B preferred stock or common stock or pursuant to the redemption
rights in the warrants for fundamental transactions. The payment of the liquidation preferences could result in common stockholders, Series B
preferred stockholders and warrantholders not receiving any consideration if we were to liquidate, dissolve or wind up, either voluntarily or
involuntarily.

The existence of the liquidation preferences may reduce the value of our common stock, make it harder for us to sell shares of common stock in
offerings in the future, or prevent or delay a change of control. Furthermore, any conversion of Series A preferred stock into common stock will
cause substantial dilution to our common stock holders.

Our limited commercialization experience and number of approved products makes it difficult to evaluate our current business, predict our
future prospects, assess the long-term performance of our products, and forecast our financial performance.

We were incorporated in 2007, began commercializing our initial non-Lumivascular platform products in 2009 and introduced our first
Lumivascular platform products in the United States in late 2012. We received 510(k) clearance from the FDA, for
commercialization of Pantheris in October 2015, an additional 510(k) clearance for an enhanced version of Pantheris
in March 2016 and commenced sales of Pantheris in the United States and select international markets promptly
thereafter. Our limited commercialization experience and number of approved products make it difficult to evaluate
our current business and predict our future prospects. We have encountered and will continue to encounter risks and
difficulties frequently experienced by companies in rapidly-changing industries. These risks and uncertainties include
the risks inherent in clinical trials, market acceptance of our products, and increasing and unforeseen expenses as we
continue to attempt to grow our business.
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In addition, we have in the past, and may in the future, become aware of performance issues with our products. For example, prior to becoming
commercially available on March 1, 2016, Pantheris had been used in clinical trials mainly in controlled situations. Since its commercialization
and as more physicians have used Pantheris, we have received additional feedback on its performance, both positive and negative. We have
addressed certain of these concerns and plan to make additional product changes and improvements as a result of this feedback. However, there
can be no assurance that the changes and improvements will fully address the performance issues that have been raised. Even if these issues are
resolved and physician concerns addressed, future product performance issues may occur and our reputation could suffer, which could lead to
decreased sales of our products. Our revenue has been and continues to be adversely impacted by these product performance issues. We also had
to incur additional expenses to make product changes and improvements, and to replace products in accordance with our warranty policy. This
additional expense, and any future expense that we may incur as a result of future product performance issues, will negatively impact our
financial performance and results of operations. If we are unable to improve the performance of our products to meet the concerns of physicians
our revenue may decline further or fail to increase.

Our short commercialization experience and limited number of approved products also make it difficult for us to forecast our future financial
performance and such forecasts are limited and subject to a number of uncertainties, including our ability to obtain FDA clearance for new

versions of Pantheris and other Lumivascular platform products we intend to commercialize in the United States. If
our assumptions regarding the risks and uncertainties we face, which we use to plan our business, are incorrect or
change due to circumstances in our business or our markets, or if we do not address these risks successfully, our
operating and financial results could differ materially from our expectations and our business could suffer.
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Our success depends in large part on a limited number of products, particularly Pantheris, all of which have a limited
commercial history. If these products fail to gain, or lose, market acceptance, our business will suffer.

Ocelot, Ocelot PIXL, Ocelot MVRX, Lightbox, Wildcat, Kittycat 2 and Pantheris are our only products currently cleared for sale, and our
current revenues are wholly dependent on them. Sales of Wildcat and Kittycat 2 have declined and are continuing to decline as we focus on the
promotion of our Lumivascular platform products. In addition, the long-term viability of our company is largely dependent on the successful
commercialization and continued development of Pantheris and we expect that sales of Pantheris and our other current and future Lumivascular

platform products in the United States will account for substantially all of our revenues for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, our success
depends on the continued and growing acceptance and use of Pantheris and our other Lumivascular platform products
by the medical community. All of our products have a limited commercial history. For example, we received

510(k) clearance from the FDA to commercialize Pantheris in October 2015 as well as a separate FDA approval to
market an enhanced version of Pantheris in March 2016, and Pantheris became commercially available in the United
States and select international markets promptly thereafter. As such acceptance among physicians of these products
may not increase or may decline.

Our ability to successfully market Pantheris will also be limited due to a number of factors including regulatory restrictions in our labeling. We
cannot assure you that demand for Pantheris and our other Lumivascular platform products will continue to grow and our products may not
significantly penetrate current or new markets. Market demand for Pantheris and physician adoption of this product also may be negatively
impacted by product performance issues that we have experienced and the need to replace certain products in accordance with our warranty
policy. Sales of Pantheris and our other Lumivascular platform products may decline as a result of the reduced sales and marketing personnel

headcount after our organizational realignment in April 2017 and the implementation of our cost reduction plan in

September 2017. Utilization of our products has been less than we anticipated historically. If demand for Pantheris
and our other Lumivascular platform products does not increase and we cannot sell our products as planned, our
financial results will be harmed. In addition, market acceptance may be hindered if physicians are not presented with
compelling data from long-term studies of the safety and efficacy of our Lumivascular platform products compared to
alternative procedures, such as angioplasty, stenting, bypass surgery or other atherectomy procedures. For example, if
patients undergoing treatment with our Lumivascular platform products have retreatment rates higher than or
comparable with the retreatment rates of alternative procedures, it will be difficult to demonstrate the value of our
Lumivascular platform products. Any studies we may conduct comparing our Lumivascular platform with alternative
procedures will be expensive, time consuming and may not yield positive results. Physicians will also need to
appreciate the value of real-time imaging in improving patient outcomes in order to change current methods for
treating PAD patients. In addition, demand for our Lumivascular platform products may decline or may not increase
as quickly as we expect. Failure of our Lumivascular platform products to significantly penetrate current or new
markets, or our failure to successfully commercialize Pantheris, would harm our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We are also aware of certain characteristics and features of our Lumivascular platform that may prevent widespread market adoption. For
example, in procedures using the current model of Pantheris, some physicians may prefer to have a technician or second physician assisting with
the operation of the catheter as well as a separate technician to operate the Lightbox, potentially making it less financially attractive for
physicians and their hospitals and medical facilities. It may take significant time and expense to modify our products to allow a single physician
to operate the entire system and we can provide no guarantee that we will be able to make such modifications, or obtain any additional and
necessary regulatory clearances for such modifications. Although the OCT images created by our Lightbox may make it possible for physicians
to reduce the degree to which fluoroscopy and contrast dye are used when using our Lumivascular platform products compared to competing
endovascular products, physicians are still using both fluoroscopy and contrast dye, particularly with Pantheris. As a result, risks of
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complications from radiation and contrast dye are still present and may limit the commercial success of our products. Finally, it will require
training for technicians and physicians to effectively operate our Lumivascular platform products, including interpreting the OCT images created
by our Lightbox, which may affect adoption of our products by physicians. These or other characteristics and features of our Lumivascular
platform may cause our products not to be widely adopted and harm our business, financial condition and results of operation.

We rely heavily on our sales professionals to market and sell our products. If we are unable to hire, effectively train, manage, improve the
productivity of, and retain our sales professionals, our business will be harmed, which would impair our future revenue and profitability.

Our success largely depends on our ability to hire, train, manage and improve the productivity levels of our sales professionals. We have
experienced direct sales employee and sales management turnover in the past. The loss of any member of our sales team s senior
management could weaken our sales expertise and harm our business, and we may not be able to find adequate
replacements on a timely basis, or at all. The changes in senior management that have occurred over the past several
years may continue to create instability in our sales force leading to attrition in sales representatives in the future.
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Competition for sales professionals who are familiar with and trained to sell our products continues to be strong. We train our sales professionals
to better understand our existing and new product technologies and how they can be positioned against our competitors products. These
initiatives are intended to improve the productivity of our sales professionals and our revenue and profitability. It takes time for the sales
professionals to become productive following their hiring and training and there can be no assurance that sales representatives will reach
adequate levels of productivity, or that we will not experience significant levels of attrition in the future. Measures we implement to improve the
productivity may not be successful and may instead contribute to instability in our operations, additional departures from our sales organization,
or further reduce our revenue, profitability, and harm our business and our stock price may be adversely impacted as a result.

In addition, in April 2017, we undertook an organizational realignment, which included a reduction in force, lowering our total headcount by
approximately 33% compared to December 31, 2016, and reducing our field sales personnel by nearly 50%. In
September 2017, we effected a cost reduction plan, which also included a company-wide reduction in force, lowering
our total headcount by 24 employees. As of March 31, 2018, our field sales personnel headcount was reduced to 18,
compared to 19 as of December 31, 2017. Other employees may leave voluntarily as a result of the reduction in force
that we implemented. Given the significant reduction in our sales force, there can be no assurance that our remaining
field sales personnel will be adequate to successfully commercialize our products.

If our revenue does not improve, or if our cost of revenue and/or operating expenses increase by a greater percentage than our revenue, our
gross margins and operating margins may be adversely impacted, our loss from operations will increase, and our cash used in operating
activities will increase, which could reduce our assets and have a material adverse effect on our stock price.

Our gross margin was to 22% for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to (17%) for the three months ended March 31, 2016. Gross
margin for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was positively impacted primarily by an decrease of $1.1 million in charges for excess and
obsolescence predominantly related to our Pantheris and Lightbox inventories in the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2017.

Our gross margin is impacted by the revenue that we generate and the costs incurred to generate the revenue. To the extent that our revenue does
not grow or declines, it is difficult to improve our gross margins as our fixed costs must be spread over a lower revenue base. Our future revenue
may be adversely affected by a number of factors including the competitive market environment in which we operate, which may result in a
decrease in the number of products sold or a decrease in the average selling prices achieved for our product sales. If our revenue does not
improve, or if our cost of revenue increases by a greater percentage than our revenue, or if we are not able to reduce expenses in the event of a
decline in revenue, we may continue to generate losses from operations and use cash, which could reduce our cash faster than budgeted, cause us
to need to obtain additional financing and have a material adverse effect on our operations and stock price.

Our ability to compete is highly dependent on demonstrating the benefits of our Lumivascular platform to physicians, hospitals and patients.

In order to generate sales, we must be able to clearly demonstrate that our Lumivascular platform is both a more effective treatment system and
more cost-effective than the alternatives offered by our competitors. If we are unable to convince physicians that our Lumivascular platform
leads to significantly lower rates of restenosis, or narrowing of the artery, and leads to fewer adverse events during treatment than those using
competing technologies, our business will suffer. In order to use Pantheris or our Ocelot family of catheters, hospitals must make an investment
in our Lightbox. Accordingly, we must convince hospitals and physicians that our Lumivascular platform results in significantly better patient
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outcomes at a competitive overall cost. For example, we may need to demonstrate that the investment hospitals must make when purchasing our
Lightbox and the incremental costs of having a technician or a second physician operate Pantheris can be justified based on the benefits to
patients, physicians and hospitals. If we are unable to develop robust clinical data to support these claims, we will be unable to convince
hospitals and third-party payors of these benefits and our business will suffer.

Our value proposition to physicians and hospitals is largely dependent upon our contention that the rate of arterial damage when physicians are
using our products is lower than with competing products. If minimizing arterial damage does not significantly impact patient outcomes,
meaning either (i) that restenosis is often triggered without disrupting healthy arterial structures, or (ii) arteries can be damaged during treatment
without triggering restenosis, then we may be unable to demonstrate our Lumivascular platform s benefits are any different than competing
technologies. Furthermore, physicians may find our imaging system difficult to use, and we may not be able to provide physicians with adequate
training to be able to realize the benefits of our Lumivascular platform. If physicians do not value the benefits of on-board imaging and the
enhanced visualization enabled by our products during an endovascular intervention as compared to our competitor s products, or do not believe
that such benefits improve clinical outcomes, our Lumivascular platform products may not be widely adopted.
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The use, misuse or off-label use of the products in our Lumivascular platform may result in injuries that lead to product liability suits, which
could be costly to our business.

We require limited training in the use of our Lumivascular platform products because we market primarily to physicians who are experienced in
the interventional techniques required to use our device. If demand for our Lumivascular platform continues to grow, less experienced
physicians will likely use the devices, potentially leading to more injury and an increased risk of product liability claims. The use or misuse of
our Lumivascular platform products has in the past resulted, and may in the future result, in complications, including damage to the treated
artery, infection, internal bleeding, and limb loss, potentially leading to product liability claims. Our Lumivascular platform products are
contraindicated for use in the carotid, cerebral, coronary, iliac, or renal arteries. Our sales force does not promote the use of our products for
off-label indications, and our U.S. instructions for use specify that our Lumivascular platform products are not intended for use in the carotid,
cerebral, coronary, iliac or renal arteries. However, we cannot prevent a physician from using our Lumivascular platform products for these
off-label applications. The application of our Lumivascular platform products to coronary arteries, as opposed to peripheral arteries, is more
likely to result in complications that have serious consequences. For example, if excised plaque were not captured properly in our device, it
could be carried by the bloodstream to a more narrow location, blocking a coronary artery, leading to a heart attack, or blocking an artery to the
brain, leading to a stroke. If our Lumivascular platform products are defectively designed, manufactured or labeled, contain defective
components or are misused, we may become subject to costly litigation initiated by our customers or their patients. Product liability claims are
especially prevalent in the medical device industry and could harm our reputation, divert management s attention from our core business, be
expensive to defend and may result in sizable damage awards against us. Although we maintain product liability insurance, the amount or
breadth of our coverage may not be adequate for the claims that are made against us.

The expense and potential unavailability of insurance coverage for liabilities resulting from our products could harm us and our ability to
sell our Lumivascular platform products.

We may not have sufficient insurance coverage for future product liability claims. We may not be able to obtain insurance in amounts or scope
sufficient to provide us with adequate coverage against all potential liabilities. Any product liability claims brought against us, with or without
merit, could increase our product liability insurance rates or prevent us from securing continuing coverage, harm our reputation in the industry,
significantly increase our expenses, and reduce product sales. Product liability claims in excess of our insurance coverage would be paid out of
cash reserves, harming our financial condition and operating results.

Some of our customers and prospective customers may have difficulty in procuring or maintaining liability insurance to cover their operations
and use of our Lumivascular platform products. Medical malpractice carriers are also withdrawing coverage in certain states or substantially
increasing premiums. If this trend continues or worsens, our customers may discontinue using our Lumivascular platform products and potential
customers may opt against purchasing our Lumivascular platform products due to the cost or inability to procure insurance coverage.

Our ability to compete depends on our ability to innovate successfully.

The market for medical devices in general, and in the PAD market in particular, is highly competitive, dynamic, and marked by rapid and
substantial technological development and product innovation. There are few barriers that would prevent new entrants or existing competitors
from developing products that compete directly with ours. Demand for our Lumivascular platform products could be diminished by equivalent
or superior products and technologies offered by competitors. If we are unable to innovate successfully, our Lumivascular platform products
could become obsolete and our revenues would decline as our customers purchase our competitors products.
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In order to remain competitive, we must continue to develop new product offerings and enhancements to our existing Lumivascular platform
products. In particular, we are currently developing two next-generation versions of our Pantheris atherectomy device, Pantheris 3.0 and a lower
profile Pantheris. We believe these versions will represe